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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Year ended 31 December

HENRAMALFE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Revenue WA 423,708 315,701 34%
(Loss)/profit from operations g (E18) 5 E (8,512) 12,990 (166%)

(Loss)/profit before non-controlling JEIRRCAE RS AT (B51B) 5 7
interests (13,399) 7,304 (283%)

Non-controlling interests FEFERR A (10) (9) 11%

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity 722 B R EEL ()~

__shareholders of the Company ___ jw#® .~ (13389 7313 . (283%)
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(ER)BR

Basic (HK$) EARGETT) (0.006) 0.003 (300%)
Diluted (HK$) WEGAT) (0.006) 0.003 (300%)
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and
the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the
"Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the
“Year” or the “Reporting Period”).

In early 2023, a state of emergency regarding COVID-19 has been
officially lifted worldwide, and the overall economic activities in the
Mainland China and Hong Kong have been recovering. According to
statistics from the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the national
consumer price index (CPI) for 2023 increased by 0.2% compared with
the previous year, indicating that domestic economic activities have been
experiencing moderate recovery, and demand for goods and services
continued to recover. During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a
growth of 43.7% from sale of semi-conductors as compared with 2022.
The gross profit of the segment increased by approximately 28.8%.

Revenue of the photovoltaic business of the Group decreased slightly
by approximately 5.6% for the Year. The decrease was mainly caused
by the exchange rate in RMB. Considering higher fuel prices and carbon
reduction targets, domestic demand for new energy sources continued to
grow. The Group anticipated that the revenue of photovoltaic business
will remain stable in the future.

Looking forward to 2024, global and domestic economic growth is
expected to accelerate as compared with 2023. The Group predicts
that demand for semi-conductor products will experience an increase
in the future. The management of the Group will evaluate the potential
opportunities and risks for future operations in light of the external
economic environment in a prudent manner as well as strive to seek new
development opportunities to ensure the stable development of various
businesses of the Group.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my thankfulness
and appreciation to my fellow Directors, management team and all the
staff of the Group for their dedications and hard work, which contributed
to the Group’'s development. | would also like to express our sincere
gratitude to all the shareholders and customers, suppliers, and business
partners for their continuous supports and persistent trust to the Group.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBFWE D

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the Group maintains its business classified into four
segments, namely, (i) sales of sub-processing cigarette films; (ii) sales of
semi-conductors; (iii) properties development and related services; and (iv)
generation of photovoltaic power.

The total revenue for the Year was approximately HK$423.7 million,
representing an increase of 34.2% compared to approximately HK$315.7
million for the year ended 2022. The increase in total revenue was mainly
from the sales of semi-conductors segment. Revenue from other segments
were no significant change during the Year.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately HK$13.4 million for the Year as compared
to a profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
approximately HK$7.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The increase of loss for the Year was mainly caused by the fair loss on an
investment in convertible loan approximately HK$22.2 million.

RESULTS OF OPERATION
Revenue
Sales of sub-processing cigarette films

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue amounting to approximately
HK$3.3 million from sales of sub-processing cigarette and non-cigarette
films (for the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$3.7
million).

Sales of semi-conductors

Revenue from sales of semi-conductors were generated from trading
business of wafer and memory chips, which contributed approximately
HK$367.0 million for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately HK$255.3 million).

Properties development

The properties development revenue were generated from sales of
remaining inventories of previous property project, which contributed
approximately HK$0.4 million to the Group for the Year (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$0.4 million)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Generation of photovoltaic power

For the Year, the Group had three photovoltaic power stations
in operation. The revenue generated from this segment reached
approximately HK$53.0 million for the Year (for the year ended 31
December 2022: approximately HK$56.2 million).

Gross Profit

The gross profit decreased by approximately HK$0.8 million, or
approximately 2.2%, from approximately HK$38.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$37.7 million for the Year.
Our gross profit margin decreased from approximately 12.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 8.9% for the Year. The
decrease was mainly from sales of semi-conductors segment which was in
lower gross profit margin than other segments.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately HK$0.3
million for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$0.3 million).

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$1.6 million,
or approximately 6.1%, from approximately HK$27.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$28.6 million for the Year.

Impairment Loss

The Group has engaged an independent valuer to perform impairment
assessment and calculated the expected credit loss in accordance with
Hong Kong Accounting Standards.

During the Year, the Group recorded reversal of impairment losses of
approximately HK$1.0 million on trade and other receivables (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$2.8 million).

Other gains and losses, net

During the Year, other losses, net were approximately HK$22.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$17.7 million as compared
with approximately HK$5.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The increase in other losses, net was mainly due to the fair value loss on
an investment in convertible loan approximately HK$22.2 million for the
Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Finance Costs

The finance costs amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million for the Year
(for the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$0.9 million).

Income Tax

The income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$4.1 million for
the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2022: income tax expenses
approximately HK$4.8 million).

Loss Attributable to the Equity Shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$13.4 million
for the Year as compared to a profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of approximately HK$7.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$237.3 million (which were denominated
in HK$, RMB and US$) as compared with approximately HK$330.9 million
as at 31 December 2022, representing an decrease of approximately
HK$93.6 million. Such decrease was mainly due to the Group’s net cash
inflow of operating activities, net cash outflow of investment activities and
net cash outflow of financing activities that amounted to approximately
HK$14.8 million, approximately HK$71.8 million and approximately
HK$25.3 million respectively. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's
current ratio being the rate of total current assets to total current liabilities
was 19.0 (as at 31 December 2022: 19.6).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material bank
loans, debt securities, borrowings, indebtedness, guarantees, hire
purchase commitments or mortgages (as at 31 December 2022: Nil).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate

Currently, the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. As the functional currency for all subsidiaries in
the PRC are RMB, these subsidiaries were not exposed to any currency
risks due to the exchange rate movement of RMB during the Year. For
subsidiaries established outside the PRC, they had no material financial
assets and liabilities denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the Group's
exposure to RMB risk is insignificant.

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s total capital expenditure amounted to
approximately HK$4.0 million.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 of the consolidated financial statements,
there is no significant event after the Year and up to the date of this
report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

There was no significant investment, material acquisitions and disposals by
the Group during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 57 employees (as
compared with 57 employees as at 31 December 2022) with total
staff cost of approximately HK$12.6 million for the Year. The Group’s
remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to market
terms and individual merits. The Company has also adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme and a share option scheme to provide incentive or
reward to high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (for the year ended 31 December 2022: HK$1.0 cent per share).

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, global and domestic economic growth is expected to
accelerate compared with 2023. The Group predicts the demand of semi-
conductor products will increase in the future. At the same time, the
demand of new energy continues to grow due to the worldwide trend of
carbon reduction. The Group will focus on the development of sales of
semi-conductor and generation of photovoltaic power segments in 2024.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can
meet its funding requirements from time to time.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2022: Nil).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (referred to as the
“Group” or “we") focuses on sales of sub-processing cigarette
films, sales of semi-conductors, properties development and
generation of photovoltaic power. The principal facilities are located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

This report summarises several subjects of the Group’s business
practices for the Environmental, Social and Governance (referred to
as the “ESG") report (referred to as the “Report”) and its relevant
implemented policies and strategies in relation to the Group’s
operational practices and environmental protection. For information
regarding corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 (the “Year” or “2023").

Reporting Framework

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK").

In preparation of the ESG Report, due diligence has been taken to

adhere to the reporting principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”
and “Consistency”.

Materiality: The ESG Report is structured based on the materiality
of respective issues and we identified the most material ESG issues
pertaining to our businesses through the materiality assessment, as
disclosed in pages 17 to 21 of this Report. The materiality of issues
was reviewed and confirmed by the Board.

Quantitative: The ESG Report prepared in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide and discloses key performance indicators
(KPIs) in environmental and social aspects in a quantitative way
wherever possible and gives comparative data where appropriate.
The KPIs were calculated and presented with reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide. The Report details any standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, or source of conversion
factors used.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE  HEBRERRE

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, this Report applies the data
statistics and calculation methods that are consistent with those
in last year ESG report to provide a meaningful comparison with
data over previous years. If there is any change that may affect
comparison with previous reports, the Group will add explanatory
notes to the corresponding sections.

This ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of the
Group and was approved by the Board.

Reporting Scope

The Report content covers the Group’s ESG policies and measures,
and compliance of the major subsidiaries including Jiangsu Sheen
Color Science Technology Co., Ltd. and Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy
Power Generation Co., Ltd. both located in the PRC, Century Leader
Asia Limited. The contents disclosed in the environmental aspect of
this Report mainly covered major business segments of the Group:
sales of sub-processing cigarette films, generation of photovoltaic
power and sales of semi-conductors. The business segment of
properties development is not included in the environmental aspect
of this Report owing to their non-materiality to the Group. The
social aspect of this Report covers the Group-wide data. There was
no change in the reporting scope compare to last year.

Comments and Feedback

We make every effort to ensure consistency between the Chinese
and English versions of this Report. However, in the event of any
inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

The progress of the Group depends in part on valuable comments
from stakeholders. For any clarifications or advice regarding
the content of this Report, please forward your comments and
suggestions to investorrelations@sheentai.com.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group adjusts and
facilities the sustainability performance approaches via regular
meetings with major organisational functions such as compliance
affairs, workplace health and safety, and human resources. The
management conducts regular reviews of ESG-related metric
materials to respective subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Group
identifies and evaluates the materiality of the diverse range of
ESG topics that are interrelated with our business operations (See
next section: Materiality Assessment). The most material ESG
topics which guide the Group'’s corporate strategy are validated
by the Board. As we advance our sustainability journey, the Group
endeavours to raise the Board’'s knowledge and awareness of the
ESG landscape.

Board Statement

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting, which include determination and evaluation of the
ESG related risks and opportunity, as well as supervision to ensure
the suitable and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place.

The Group conducts a top-down approach to cooperate with
the Audit Committee, Management and Internal Audit Function
to conduct ESG-related risk management and opportunities
assessment in an ongoing basis. The Board is responsible for
overseeing the risk management and internal control mechanism
to ensure every strategic plan and vision, as well as operational
guidelines for ESG matters are operating smoothly.
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The Board has formed an ESG working team to assist and advise
the Board on the development and implementation of ESG
strategies, policies and practices and priorities of the Group, assist
the Board in reviewing ESG performance and targets and exploring
ESG related opportunities. It has the responsibility for collecting
data from different departments and business operations and
analysing (including but not limited to comparing with historical
data) and verifying ESG data after collected, ensuring compliance
with ESG-related laws and regulations, and preparing ESG reports.
The ESG working team comprises of the representatives of different
departments, including human resource department, finance
department, and the other main business segments to ensure the
diverse backgrounds and expertise in ESG management. The Group
will review the composition of the working group on a regular
basis. The Board will have meeting with the ESG working group at
least once per year and receive briefings on any updated ESG issues
on a regular basis. By reviewing and evaluating the implementation
of policies, the Board is up-to-date regarding the performance and

the risk and opportunities of ESG of the Group.

The audit committee, assisted by the internal control team,
supports the Board to assess and manage risks includes, but
not limited to environment, human resources, health and safety
and compliance. These risks have been embedded into the risk
management processes including risk identification, risk assessment,
risk treatment, monitoring and review processes. The result of the
overall ESG performance and ESG-related risk assessment will be
reported to the Board on an annual basis for review in order to

ensure that the Group’s ESG strategy and goals are achieved.

The Board tracks, reviews and follow up on the achievement of
objective of the main ESG issues (including ESG related goals and
targets) at least once a year in order to bridge the gap between
current progress and the expectations. The Board will also ensure

the Group's policies are continuously implemented.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Materiality Assessment BEMME

Sustainable development encompasses a holistic spectrum of AIFERRAESRENLSER 2 REBEHE -

environmental and social aspects. It is crucial for the Group to BEETARBRER RS - NEB VAT

determine the most material aspects in order to harness the related XEZHNETE - AREHAHA - BHERIR

risks and opportunities. The Group adopts a three-step process of ZEHZEFR  URREEEEENH A

identification, prioritisation and validation to ensure sustainability BERIBETEEREE -

topics are being managed and reported in accordance with their

materiality.

(1) Identification (1) &a
In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, all fundamental RIRIRE B REBWMEES - BE
sustainability topics were identified. In the context of the FIEERNAIHERREE - ER&H
latest sustainability landscape, the Group has determined the WAREEREFY  AEBRBEUTZ
following 23 topics that are deemed to have an impact on TZERR AR BEEHRENTEEL
the environment and society through the operations. HENFEE o

ESG Aspects Material ESG issues for the Group

B  dEaRERER HEEEBFEANRR  HERELEE

A. Environmental

BIR
A1 Emissions 1. Air emissions
e RERHEL
2. Greenhouse gas emissions
B R EEHE
3. Hazardous waste management
BEEEMER
4. Non-hazardous waste management
BREFEEMER
5. Effluent discharges
TEIRBERR
6. Noise emissions
BEBEN
A2 Use of Resources 7. Energy consumption
BIR{E A BEIREFE
8. Water consumption
IKEREFE
9. Packaging material consumption
BEMELERE
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources 10.  Environmental risk management
RIERAAER RIRERER
11.  Ecological impacts
H R 2
A4 Climate Change 12. Climate-change strategy
RIRE(L RARE LR RE

JERZEREBERAR
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BRE - HgRERERE

ESG Aspects

BE  HEREREE

Material ESG issues for the Group

EXNRE  HEREREE

B1

B2

B3

B4

B5

B6

B7

B8

Social

e

Employment

=

Health and Safety
RENRZE

Development and Training
R S

Labour Standards

BT AR

Supply Chain Management
HrEgEeEn

Product and Service Responsibility

EmERHERE

Anti-corruption
REF
Community Investment

HEREE

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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20.

21.

22.

23.

Employment and remuneration policies
1% K BBR

Occupational health and workplace safety
BERRETIESMZE

Employee development and training
REERKIE

Anti-child and forced labour
Pr1EE T Rag|ss T

Supply chain management

e

Quality and safety of the goods/services
Eh/ REEEREE

Customer satisfaction

BRPmEE

Personal data privacy protection

BN ERHRE

Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing
communication and product labelling
HMERERE  EREHIDREMEE
Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
REBRRBFITR

Community investment

HEREE
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(2) Prioritisation 2) HwmHERX

The Group sought the views of senior management of BETIRERE HekEAZREANE
respective operational regions to determine the materiality Z  AEEZ2FRESEHESES
of the selected ESG topics. The senior management, who BAEMEE BRREBEASRY
possesses a high-level view of all the topics and has access to FIEEXENEEMIINEERE - FReEE
stakeholders’ feedback, was asked to score the significance BEREOEORSE  BEKRKESEOHERN
of each ESG topic to stakeholder groups and the Group in AEBRETRAEHGERE  HEgk
each of his/her perspective. The topmost-right quadrant ERABEMNEZHTS - HEAELERE
determines the high materiality topics. EREEEHNZES -

ESG Materiality Matrix
R HEREREZER

14,18,19
10 rrreerreee e e e e e X
'é' l' 1
. . .
g . 16,2021,22
9 ] 1 N2 L]
T 0 N\ .
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: : 17 15 H
8 1 s '
. i '
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o e ; : b
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Significance to the Group
HAKENERE
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Highly material topics

BEEENHRE
Ranking Number Topics
BE ma 1=
Highest 14. Occupational health and safety
BS EaBERRERZE
18. Quality and safety of the goods/services
Eio/ REEERLE
19. Customer satisfaction
BEEMEE
16. Anti-child and forced labour
Br1EE T Rag|ss T
20. Personal data privacy protection
BN ERHR
21. Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing communication and product labeling
MAERRE  BREHEHRERZH
22. Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
RESKRBEFITAE
15. Employee development and training
& B3R KIE
3. Hazardous waste management
BEEEMER
5. Effluent discharges
YIIRHEER
9. Packaging material consumption
BEMELERE
17. Supply chain management
HEEER
4. Non-hazardous waste management
BEEZMER
6. Noise emissions
1R E HERR
7. Energy consumption
LR
8. Water consumption
IKERERE
10. Environmental risk management
RIEERER
11. Ecological impacts
FRERE
Lowest 12. Climate-change strategy
4543 FKIERIEE R

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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(3) Validation (3) #&&
The Board has reviewed and validated the materiality process, é ERCEHTREEENRET B
and hence the Report discloses the Group’s performance A BERBERAEEHRAEREE
on all high and low materiality topics. To address matters ’IQ&@EEEHE’UI%Z%E& o /3 [E] FE &
most material to the Group's stakeholders, topics of high AEBRBOHEREEZE  AREEH®
materiality are discussed in more depth throughout the REZMBBETEFANHEL - EF
Report. The materiality assessment of all the issues was FEREMBEENEE T -

approved by the Board.

Stakeholder Engagement BHESH

The Group believes that identifying and addressing stakeholder REEAEE - BRI REEFHOEZRA
views lay a solid foundation to the long-term growth and EZK’EIE’JEH}%?"E%DEZWQiE&?%
success of the Group. The Group engages with a wide network c AEEEBEZHROHELHE  BF
of stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers, EE BP o HER - RE - BUT R
shareholders, government and community. @ o

®

. Sheen Tai _
Shareholders ﬁﬂ oldlngs @ ;IfErzmunlty

C)
Employees @. @ Government
Customers @ Suppliers
EF V HES

The Group develops multiple engagement channels that provide AEEBRRZEL2MMES - ERFOHER
opportunities for stakeholders to express their views on the Group’s M AREE BB E A FEER
general business conduct and sustainability management. The ERREER - BHEHEBRTREM -
engagement channels are summarised in the following table. To AMEEEEENES AEER %
reinforce mutual trust and respect, the Group is committed to SEENENEARFERNARERE
maintaining effective communication channels with stakeholders in L EREAEEE G ERBR
both formal and informal ways. This can enable the Group to better CAEEEFERBAE - BARR R
shape its business strategies in order to respond to their needs and ﬂu%ﬁi%ﬁ%

expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships.

JERZEREBERAR
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Stakeholders

BFHE

Shareholders

PR

N

Engagement channels
SHERE

General meetings

N

Regular corporate publications including
financial reports and ESG report

FEHBELRY - BEMBRE MERE

HEREARS
Circulars and announcements
Direct enquiries

HEDSH

Corporate website

NGIEER

Topics of interest/concern

BE BAYIERE

Business strategies and sustainability
EBRBLAREER

Financial performance

RS

Corporate governance

AN S0

ERB7/A

Gmployees
==
090

(a0

-

Performance appraisals
REAHE

Training sessions
HIIRTE

Social media

R EREE

Training and development

Bk AR

Employee remuneration and welfare
B SEER

Occupational health and safety
BERRARZE

Equal opportunities

TEHe

AN

KC ustomers

P

09

-

Business meetings
e

Complaint and feedback channels

Service quality and reliability
PRISE £ KA Sk
Client data security

AN

N

Continuous direct communication
FEEE AR

R kR EEEE BEFBER2
Social media Business ethics
A EEE [EES LG
Corporate website
NGIEEN
@uppliers Business meetings Fair competition
HtpERg E REHEF
Supplier assessment Business ethics
@@ R TS EELE

AN

/Govemment
B
AN
JUUL

-

Statutory filings and notification
EE R KR
Regulatory or voluntary disclosures

EEXERE

Compliance with law and regulations
BASA

Business strategies and sustainability
ERE LA F B R
Environmental protection

RIERE

AN

fCommunity Community activities Fair employment opportunities
HE HEES N ERE
Corporate donations Environmental protection
igl DB B R
Corporate website
NGIEED
Social media
N A

AN

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

Environmental sustainability is a key part of the Group’s social
responsibility effort. Guided by our Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy, we work to manage our direct and indirect impacts to the
environment through mitigating our own footprint and advocating
green finance.

The Group is committed to providing quality products to clients in
a clean and sustainable manner. Our activities typically engage in
the processes of manufacturing and printing films, such as ejection
and stretching, coarse slitting, fine slitting and printing, and
generating photovoltaic power. Environmental impacts of facilities
are managed by the management systems of each respective
subsidiary. The system ensures strict environmental compliances
of various subsidiaries, as well as continual improvement towards
cleaner practices. Periodic system reviews are conducted to ensure
its effectiveness.

Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated

The Group implements robust systems to ensure all discharges
to air, water and land are compliant with regulatory standards.
The Group has mainly focused on environmental protection and
pollutant emission during production and operation. By establishing
a management system in accordance with the national laws and
regulations, the Group constantly monitors and reviews the emission
performance during production. The Group will continue to make
every effort on clean production, energy-saving, consumption
reduction, pollution reduction and efficiency improvement, so as to
minimise the impact and safeguard of the ecosystem.

During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of
non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related
to air emissions, effluent discharges, noise emissions, greenhouse
gases, waste at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations
applicable are detailed in respective sections.

Air emissions

The Group's air emissions are mainly released from the vehicle
usage and production processes, which include the emission of
Sulphur Oxides (SOx), Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) and Particulate Matter
(PM). Company fleet and machinery undergoes regular maintenance
to ensure fuel efficiency, thereby reducing emissions.

BRE - HEaRERRS
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control of
air emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Air
Pollution Control. In addition to keeping air emission levels meeting
statutory requirements, the Group devoted resources to further
curb the release of air pollutants during the Year.

The Group released 40.3 kg, 0.1 kg and 3.9 kg of Nitrogen Oxides,
Sulphur Oxides, and Particulate Matter respectively in 2023,
remaining similar with the amounts in 2022.

Air emissions'
BERHBER

Nitrogen Oxides (NO))
RAALMINO)
Sulphur Oxides (SO,)
REILH(S0)
Particulate Matter (PM)
FERLY)(PM)

1. Air emissions included only the air pollutants in the exhaust gas from
vehicles for transportation.

Effluent discharges

The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
effluent discharges include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on
the Prevention and Treatment of Water Pollution. The waste water
from production processes results in effluent discharges. Each facility
ensures its proper handling, either by qualified subcontractors
or on-site processing prior to discharge to municipal sewers.
Processing records from subcontractors will then be retained by the
Group. Our facilities also generate domestic wastewater that will be
monitored prior to discharge. Periodic monitoring and testing of a
comprehensive list of parameters ensures regulatory compliance and
no adverse environmental impacts of effluent discharges. During
the Year, the effluent discharges has been identified and confirmed
as non-material to the Group's operations.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Noise emissions

The Group's activities are minor sources of noise emissions, which
include mechanical noise from the use of machinery and equipment,
as well as aerodynamic noise from transportation vehicles. Regular
maintenance of machinery and pre-start up inspections ensure noise
levels are kept within regulatory limits. Operational hours are always
conducted within stipulated time frames as under regulations.
Adherence to strict procedures ensures these hazards are managed
effectively. Regular monitoring of noise emission levels ensures
operations are compliant to regulatory levels. The Group ensures
all equipment used provide stationary required protections for
employees and other affected parties.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
noise emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution. Noise
assessments are conducted to determine the impact of noise
emissions on the local community.

Greenhouse gas emissions and climate change mitigation

To implement an effective approach to climate change mitigation, it
is important to have a comprehensive understanding of the carbon
emission sources of the Group. The Group’s carbon footprint
is primarily due to electricity usage, accounted under Scope I
emissions. During the Year, the Group generated a total of 451.1
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) of greenhouse gases
(Scope | and 1I), resulting in a carbon intensity of 0.02 tCO,e per
square meter gross floor area. The total amount greenhouse gas
emissions decreased in 2023 was due to less electricity purchased.
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Greenhouse gas emissions Unit 2023
BER R By 20234
Scope | (Direct Emissions) tCO,e 13.1 17.7
& — (EEHE) Wi EE
Mobile combustion tCO,e 13.1 17.7
BN WE—EACIEE
Scope Il (Indirect Emissions) tCO,e 438.0 463.9
8 — (FREEER WE—E(iE =
Electricity purchased tCO,e 438.0 463.9
BT WS S E
Total (Scope I and II) tCO,e 451.1 481.6
SEH(EE—RZ) WE_E S E
Carbon intensity (Scope | and II) tCO,e per m? 0.02 0.02
gross floor area’
mEE(EHE— k) YRS
FEME —E(bhx
%
- Intensities in 2023 and 2022 were calculated by dividing the amount l 20235 2022 F M EE TiB iR = R BN
of GHG emission by the gross floor area of the Group in 2023 and ERUAREER2023F K2022F K EEMIE
2022, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area; and FEEL - ARBERZMEFENEEEEY

21,3216 FK &

2 GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and 2 BERBHEREBA—S/LREERTRER

26

is based on the Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids
in China — Emission Reduction Projects in 2019 ({2019 JH#EAE &
B[ i AR R HEPE F)) issued by the Ministry of Ecological
Environment of the People’s Republic of China. “Notice on the
Management of Enterprise Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting by
Power Generation Industry for 2023-2025" (B8 f4F2023-2025
FRBITELERERBEAREEIEFAMIIENBA) issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of
China and “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

The sales of self-generated photovoltaic power was the Group’s
major business and revenue source. The solar panels do not emit
any greenhouse gases. In 2023, the Group produced a total of 55.2
million kilowatt-hours (“kWh") of electricity from its photovoltaic
power stations and sold a total of 54.7 million kWh of electricity,
resulting in 0.9% of electricity overproduction which is similar to
2022. The sole customer of the Group’s photovoltaic electricity
was located in Jiangsu, China at which the replacement of high-
environmental impact electricity from fossil fuel sources had avoided
31,405.3 tCO,e of greenhouse gases (Scope Il) released into the
environment.
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The Group is committed to reducing our carbon footprint. Scope
| and Il emissions are addressed through our energy reduction
initiatives (See Section: A2.1 Energy Consumption). Scope Il
emissions incur throughout our value chain, and we employ the
following measures to minimise such emissions:

o The Group encourages the use of video conferencing or
emails for communication as far as possible to minimise the
carbon footprint from overseas business trips; and

° We make every effort to reduce waste generation and
raise recycling rates to lessen GHG releases from landfill

decomposition.

Trend Analysis and Goals

BRE - HEaRERRS

REBEB M DIR © RIPIAEDREIE HERE &
HE— R _OPFR(REEL : A2168RER)
HE=MHREERMNBREGERTESL -
BAIEHRBUA TSR GREHN -

o AEETBHREEMAREGSAXETEE
B AR BN IRITRORR Y ¢

o RIFEREERSERVELMESER
BAX QRS HEESBEEROAER
B o

BEZ R AR

Progress of the

Targets current year Proposed Steps

BE REFER ERin

GHG emissions  In line with the global trend of decarbonisation Target in
and national carbon neutrality goal by 2060, progress
the Group has been focusing on the control of
its GHG emissions.

Other than the existing initiatives,
we strive to reduce our greenhouse
gas emissions through the lowering
of our energy consumption from
the major areas which include air
conditioning and lighting systems.

B REEBEI BRI EHRBE R2060F BRI BRAZD B THREEBI - HPITRS AR

FHNERER  AEE-EBIREHHE
BERBEBEM

Taking 2022 as the baseline year, the Group
targets to reduce its GHG emissions intensity
(scope 1 + scope 2) by 3% by the end of
2030.

152022 FEREEF + AEBE T EI20304F
R EREREEHE N E (S E +#E2) />
3% °

The GHG emission intensity (scope 1 + 2) in
2023 remained the same as 2022.

2023F R ERBYNETE(HE1+8E2) R
20225 FF o

PR 2HE(BR=RARRAZRLS)
HYBETRB RSB AR ERAEBE

The Group will continue feature
upgrades of the building facilities
and installations and monitor the
electricity usage on a regular basis
and follow-up with those exceeding
the normal usage standards.
REBBESHETREREBET
Weerdk  UTHEERAEE @ R
B EBERKTRER °
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Hazardous waste management FEBRENER

All collected hazardous waste, mainly waste engine, is transported FIBEEWENBEREM(ZBRERLHHK)
and treated by authorized contractors who possess qualifications AHEBEEREEDREERNREARREE
to handle hazardous waste. The amount of disposed waste is BIREE AEBEEEBERNEEMHREET
checked for consistency with contractor reports to ensure all matter BE  UEEETEADHNRE % B
is entirely disposed in the most appropriate manner. All hazardous RATBEEDHUEEENAANGIEE - M
waste is stored at designated storage points that are leak-proof FrEBEREEYHAREEY KM MEEEFNR
and rain-proof. The Group has established clear protocols have B AEEESEMRIISIERABNERE - ®
been established at each stage to ensure all hazardous matter is RIFBEEMENL 2N A REENMEFR - £
handled and stored in a safe and secure manner. Any incidents of a3 HH 300 R B RS IRRE B R 2 B IR I Ao 8%
spillage or leakage will be handled under proper procedures and be ER -

documented.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control EHBEREEV N EZEANEERER
of hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law BIRETRACFEARLEEEEYTRIR
on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from Solid BORE) c REEAHERRRA - HMBH
Wastes. To embody sustainable development principles, we aim SHESFRASERIHERER  BRREER
to explore opportunities to replace raw materials, equipment and BREBRANRME « REREERM o B
production techniques that are highly hazardous to the environment BEEBREYHE FEHRESERE - e
with less hazardous alternatives. We sort our hazardous waste to AEIRAAMNERXOMHER - o - BB
ensure those recyclables are recycled, such as toner cartridges that SEEOINEREY  URSERVELEEEEE
are returned to suppliers for recycling. Furthermore, we prioritise W e BN - EEFRBIZEOAGEERREFAMT
waste recycling to minimise hazardous waste generation. For Al - RMEHEMEITRIENIEE - R RE
instance, we perform the measures of self-repair or send to the PEIETT IR -

manufactures for recycling the damaged solar panels and electronic
components before discarding.

During the Year, the Group’s hazardous waste consists of waste RAFE  AEBNEEEEYRRBEZEITH

printer cartridge and waste oil buckets, with a total hazardous MR NERME  BEEEEVHEER2,0761

waste of 2,076 kg (2022: N/A") and hazardous waste intensity of fr(2022%F : NERAY) - BEEEVBERET

0.10 kg per square meter gross floor area? (2022: N/A"). TOREBEEMEMEC.10AT2(20224F - N@EA') ©

1. The Group has improved the data collection system to retrieve 1. AEED TEEBERES - LAIRR2023F 8
the information of waste oil buckets in 2023. Relevant data is not FEHMER - 2022F GEMABMEE -

available in 2022.

2. Intensity in 2023 was calculated by dividing the amount of hazardous 2. 2023 EERRAEERNBERIAKE
waste by the gross floor area of the Group in 2023 which was 2023 MR EEEMA(AN21,321.6F /T KEHEH
21,321.6 square meter gross floor area. R)FEEL -

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Non-hazardous waste management

The typical non-hazardous waste generated by the Group's facilities
includes plastic, food waste, used towels and office papers. The
majority of waste is recycled by qualified contractors. We place a
greater emphasis on waste reduction, as it creates the least amount
if environmental impacts.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control
of non-hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC
Law on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from
Solid Wastes. Seeking to contribute to the closed-loop economy,
we employ the following measures and initiatives to reduce the
generation of non-hazardous waste, and raise recycling rates and
will continue to review the effectiveness of the existing initiatives on
a regular basis:

° We organize and maintain waste separation systems and
recycling bins for collecting materials;

° We encourage smart printing modes in the workplace;

o We collects used paper and toner cartridges for recycling; and

o We monitor and evaluate the use of material to avoid
overstock, as well as strengthen production inspection all
through production processes to reduce and avoid rework.

During the Year, the Group generated a total of 682 kg of non-
hazardous waste, resulting in a non-hazardous waste intensity of
0.03 kg per square meter gross floor area. Compare to 2022, the
total non-hazardous waste decreased owing to the decrease in the
production volume.

Non-hazardous waste

Total non-hazardous waste generated
ESREERDES

Non-hazardous waste intensity

BERENTE

1. Intensities in 2023 and 2022 were calculated by dividing the amount
of GHG emission by the gross floor area of the Group in 2023 and
2022, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area.

BRE - HEaRERRS

BEBZEWER

ARBRIGELHEEREFZYOEDH -
EERY  BBNHRBDEMEE - KBHB
Eyma A SHER - BHEK - RPEM
EERLBEEY - BARLBERNHBROY
BEEED -

FRESERVMENNIEERERLERE
FETRACREARKMBEE B S RRE
Prask) - BREREEMOER - HARRT
IR EERLEEBETERY NI ER
BRAX - I EETIRTRAHENR

o RFAEBMEEEZEY I BERSNARK
SV EYAE

o BMEEETIESMEREETENRR

o RFMERBHNACRMBHRETOI
&

o BMEARFEMEAE  URERFS
% ARNREELEERENLEERE
LA A0 e EAE BUE

RAFE  AEBHRELERATEEZESR
Y BEBREMEE RS KREMETR0.03
RfT o E2022F 18 - BEEBRRMEERES
WA MABPT T o

Unit 2023 2022

By 2023 20224

kg 681.5 1,327.9
/NI

kg per m? 0.03 0.06
gross floor area’
GEIHKEE
HEEAT

1. 2023F R2022FMEE HiRERAEREHN
SRUAREER2023F K2022F K EEME
FTEABE - ARENZMEFENREREY
A21,321.6F K o
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Trend Analysis and Goals

Areas’

SR

Waste

Targets'
B

The Group targets to lower the waste generated
from operations and business activities by 3% of
waste intensity by the end of 2030 from 2022.

REBSEBE2022F £ E2030FEAELE R E
BEBEENEEYRLINEEYRE -

l The Group has revised from non-hazardous waste to total waste for
the target as the Group has improved the data collection system to
retrieve the information of hazardous waste in 2023.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2023

BE2oEER

Proposed Steps
EREiElt

The Group commits to allocating additional
resources towards the implementation of
sustainable waste management practices, including
but not limited to providing reusable containers for
employees for meals, considering the products, like
packing materials, made from recycled materials or
that can be recycled after use.

& R B E MR B dn R B R B sk A 12 AT
Bl - AREEEGE DB REINERAE e AT FHERE
EWEREBE  BEEMRNARERHAIEE
EANER -

! HARAEEC BESBEIERLS - iRER2023
FHEREDEN  WASEEHEZHES
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Aspect A2: Use of resources

The Group is committed to continually monitoring and improving
resource efficiency as an integral part of business strategy and
operating methods, as well as complying with relevant government
policies and environmental legislations. We will continue to review
the effectiveness of the existing initiatives and set achievable targets
in future years. During the Year, the Group did not encounter
incident of non- compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
related to the use of energy and water resources at all operating
regions. Major applicable laws and regulations are detailed in
respective sections.

Energy

The Group's energy profile consists of the use of electricity and
petrol for facility operations. Fuel used for electricity is the major
source of energy emission in our operations, consumed 768.1 mWh
in 2023, excluding electricity sold. During the Year, the Group
consumed 47.9 mWh and (53,938) mWh of direct and indirect
energy respectively, resulting a total energy intensity of (2.53) mWh
per square meter gross floor area.

Energy consumption?

BRE - HEaRERRS

EBmEA2 : EREH

EREBRBEREETAN—R  AEEERN
SR RN E LRSS - PA KB ST AR BUN
BREREED - BAISEERREEED
PR WERREFREAERNBR - XA
FEA  AEERLEMRGENRERRER
RER RKEIRIE E@%ﬁ)ﬂiﬁ&iﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%# OEsS
BERERIERN S AR

BEIR

REEMERMK R BERE N KR HEER
o ARBENHRE ARMEENEBRE
BR - 20236 E 768 1 KR (T RIEHE&
) e RAFEE » NEEDRIEFEA7 9K FE
&(53,938) kAR EE REEERE - BERE
EARTFHKEEEBEQ.53)IKEE -

RERHFE?
Direct mWh 47.9 64.5
B JK LB
Petrol (gasoline) mWh 47.9 64.5
oM (B h) JKELBF
Indirect mWh (53,938.0) (54,254.6)
B JK L
Less: electricity sold mWh 54,706.1 55,068.0
W HERNEND JKEFLBF
Electricity purchased mWh 768.1 813.4
BE JKEES
Total (Direct and Indirect) mWh (53,890.1) (54,190.1)
St (EEREE) JK LB
Energy intensity mWh per m? (2.53) (2.54)
gross floor area’
BEREE P HREREE
HEEIK
JERZREBER D E
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Intensities in 2023 and 2022 were calculated by dividing the amount
of GHG emission by the gross floor area of the Group in 2023 and
2022, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area; and

The methodology adopted for energy conversion of the energy
resources of the Group was based on “How to prepare an ESG
Report-Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the HKEx the IPCC Default Net Calorific Values Database.

2023F R2022F W EE HiRERAEREHN
SEBRAREER2023F K2022F R ZEME
FFESAYE  ARERZMEFENEEEEY
A21,321.6F 77K &

REEEFAERE R BERE IR R ITETIE
WEXZMEBARREZCEFIZBGRRF
AEHREEMA(NARIRE HERE
AMmE —MS T REWRABERERER
) &

FRERERNEIZEMERIERBEET
R EARAMBEHNEEIRE) - REEHK
BB THNEER DR AE 7 JERE - A
BRI A BRI

The major applicable laws and regulations related to energy
use include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Energy
Conservation. The Group is committed to minimising fuel and
electricity consumption through the following initiatives and will
continue to review the effectiveness of the existing initiatives on a
regular basis.

. We have installed energy-efficient LED lighting and cooling . BMEEERELE T EALEDRA KL

systems in production areas;

We have replaced computer equipment, servers, and
monitors with energy-efficient models;

We have adopted minimise energy usage through the
utilisation of power-saving modes of any devices for office
use;

We regularly clean the air filter of the air-conditioners

RIS

BB EKEE  ARSRBERSER
AERRERUSE |

BOF AR ARENTEEXE2R D6
IRIERAE

BAEHBREROERBIERS @ IR

BRERRBEE : K
BPCREFESITRERBTRMGDN
CGEEMBERBERD]) - EMEBRROR
3 RETRBESTERMBETH °

regularly to improve the cool air flow efficiency; and

° We have taken necessary actions in compliance with °
the Building Energy Efficiency Ordinance enacted by the
Government of HKSAR in planning, design and construction
of property development.

BESMRAE

Progress of the
current year

Trend Analysis and Goals

Proposed Steps
ERiEiE

Targets

B REEER

Energy In line with the goals of GHG emissions  Target in On top of electricity conservation, the
reductions, the Group targets to lower the  progress Group commits to focus its efforts
GHG emissions in the purchase of electricity on improving energy efficiency of its
for operations, which is the largest equipment through upgrades and
contributor to the Group’s GHG profile, by procurement.
3% of energy intensity by 2030 from 2022.

BEIR BERVAERBHRNERE  AEEE BRERZRT BRERZAEIN - NEBBEBF KKK

TEM2022F BB 2030F st & EERIBE /) B BRI R -
R EREHINE (W AREEREREN

RARR) R REEREERN3% -

The energy intensity in 2023 remained
similar to 2022.
2023FREREE E2022648F -
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Water resources

Production processes as well as general amenities make use of
water. At the Group, our facilities withdraw water mainly from
municipal supplies. We have not encountered any issues in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. However, water resources should not
be taken for granted and conserved to ensure a sustainable future.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to water use
include, but are not limited to, the Water Law of PRC. In order to
reduce wastewater, the Group practices the following initiatives
to curtail our water consumption currently and continue to review
the effectiveness of existing initiatives and set achievable targets in
future years.

° We regularly check piping and taps for leakages and damage,
and ensure their prompt repair;

° We monitor water readings at regular intervals when no
water is being used to ensure against hidden water leakages;

° We give priority to effective water-saving products, such
as the adoption of low or dual flush toilets, and low-flow
faucets or water outlets;

° We raise staff awareness in water saving in production and
office operations through education and promotion;

. We will take the Water Efficiency Labelling Scheme (WELS)
implemented by Water Supplies Department into account
during selection of plumbing fixtures and water-consuming
devices; and

° The Group selects the plumbing fixtures and water-
consuming devices with Water Efficiency Grade 1 or 2 as far
as practicable.

BRE - HEaRERRS

KXEIR

EERBER MBI ERK - REBERRHE
FEREMBEK o HBAVEREGERKR LI
EAMEE - AT - RPITEEXKERR AR
FRE M » MEET A RKMRIE A5 E BRI R
5{ °

BRRKNIZBERERIOEREBEBTIRR
(REARKMBEIOR) - BEADEEK - AEE
R RBUA TR AKE - WHEERTER
BREBHRY  YERREFREAVERNE

Ta_fo
=

. ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁkﬂmﬁﬁ%
 EERERGRIEE

BIRKFNE

o BET AKEEE
ﬁ?f&ﬁ*%%?

AESRIKERER - HE

o RMELERAREKER fINESK
LB HKE RN REREKEEAR K
A

e HMBEHAREE REEIELE
RN B ETKE R

. TEERKBRERAKKRAERT - &M
SR EREBHTHNA KRS IZETE
(WELS) : &
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During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 13,927 cubic
metre of water, resulting in a water intensity of 0.6 cubic metre per

square meter gross floor area.

RAFEE « ANEBHEEFE13,9277 7KK @ #E
KBE BT HKEE®ME0.6: 5K »

Water consumption 2023

KEREFE 20234

Total water consumption cubic metre 13,927 20,506
wiEKE ST K

Water consumption intensity cubic metre per m? 0.6 1.0

gross floor area’

FKEmE BRI
EE 7K

1. Intensities in 2023 and 2022 were calculated by dividing the amount
of GHG emission by the gross floor area of the Group in 2023 and

2022, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area.

Trend Analysis and Goals

Progress of the

BZ 5

2023F R2022FMEE HiRERAERETHN
ERUAREER2023F K2022F K EEME
FTEABE - ARENZMEFENREREY
A21,321.6F K o

WRAE

Proposed Steps
EREiE

Targets current year

BE TEEER
Water Taking 2022 as the baseline year, the Group  Target in

targets to reduce the water consumption  progress

intensity by 3% in 2025, from 0.59 cubic

metre per m? gross floor area (excluding the

lost water of 8,000 cubic metre caused by

the burst fire pipe).

#2022 FERERESF - AEBEAEN2025 EBEREZH

FRFEKRBERT T HKELEMIE0.59
KT BIEEHE B &2 MmIE A AI8,0003 5
KIAK)BEIE3% ©

The water consumption intensity in 2023
similar to 2022.
2023FFKEE H2022F % ©

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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The Group plans to improve water
recirculating system and employ
advanced water recycling facilities to
enhance water efficiency.

More inspection, checking and
maintain are to be made to prevent
the accidence of burst fire pipe.

REEFEIPCERBRFAFALIRA K
M B EKEM - B RA R KR

s
fm °

MR -~ mEREE - BIILEE
BRREWAOBEAE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEREARS

BEMNH
AEENKRERNBREMESEAR - &

Packaging material

Finished products at the Group uses packaging material that include

paperboard, paper tube, packing tape and wrapping film. The
Group aims to consider more sustainable approaches to product
packaging early in the design phase. During the Year, a total of
6,567.0 kg of packaging material was consumed for finished

T REBTLEEEE  ASENEEZER
AR EHEEREMAFENERRES
JE o IAANEE - HIEFE6,567.0R T A s B EEM
B mEARETVTHOKEE@mEIAT -

products, resulting in an intensity of 0.3 kg per square meter gross
floor area.

Water consumption

BEMEIHFE
Total packaging consumption kg 6,567.0 7,000.0
BEMEERES NN
Packaging consumption intensity kg per m? 0.3 0.3
gross floor area’
BEMEERETE BFREEE
EELT!
1. Intensities in 2023 and 2022 were calculated by dividing the amount 1. 20236 2022 F M EE TiB iR = R EHEN

of GHG emission by the gross floor area of the Group in 2023 and
2022, which both were 21,321.6 square meter gross floor area.

Aspect A3: The environment and natural
resources

The Group strives to build an eco-conscious culture that ingrains
positive lifestyles and habits among employees. For corporate social
activities and other events, low-carbon dietary choices and products
from social enterprises are prioritised. Waste reduction plans are
rolled out for large-scale events.

EBRAREER2023F K2022F R ZEME
FTEAYL  ARBRZMEFENEEEREY
521,321,655k °

BHA3 : RERXARER

AEBBNERERREXL  FREEKR
AR AMBE  ARNEEHEESHRE
ESEBLEALELENERRYNESR
HARIVRE TR R & -
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Aspect A4: Climate change

The Group understands the importance of climate change which
leads to extreme weather followed by many challenges to water
resources, emission regulations and energy development. As a
responsible corporate citizen, we consistently identify and analyse
the environmental sustainability development strategies in respect
of emission control (Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated),
energy use efficiency and water efficiency (Aspect A2: Use of
resources) across our operations.

Recently, the development of renewable energy industry has been
encouraged worldwide as the renewable energy could help reduce
the adverse impacts of climate change. However, the changing
climate also changes the cloud patterns and air temperature
that impact the photovoltaic electricity generation of the Group,
resulting in annual fluctuation of photovoltaic resources. In order
to minimise the impact of climate change, the Group carries
out comprehensive photovoltaic resource tests to obtain the
photovoltaic installed capacity data in prior to the development
and construction work. The maintenance and repair work of the
photovoltaic facilities are also undertaken on a regular basis.

The increasing frequency and severity of extreme weather events
such as heavy rains, flooding and typhoons disrupted the supply
chain, damaged the Group's assets, and affecting the operations
of the Group’s offices and factories which resulting in reduced
revenue, as well as increased the cost of repairing or restoring
damaged sites. These events may also result in the temporary
suspension of the production facilities. The Group has established
the control procedures for emergency and has insurance coverage
for both staff and production facilities, so as to alleviate the losses
in the event of extreme weather affecting the Group.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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Regarding the policy and legal risks, the local governments and
regulators continue to tighten the environmental regulatory
requirements and implement policies related to climate change
disclosure. For example, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange requires
all the listed companies to enhance the climate-related disclosures
in their ESG reports. Failure to comply with the policies related
to climate change may have negative impact on the reputation
and corporate image of the Group. In view of this, the Group will
continue to monitor the update of the policies and regulations
in Hong Kong and Mainland China and strictly complied with all
applicable laws and regulations while encouraging the Group's
suppliers to do the same.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group ingrains social responsibility into all aspects of its
operations. Maintaining honest and authentic dialogue with staff,
the Group seeks to address their needs and views that ensure our
conduct is responsible at all times. We commit to offer a fair and
safe workplace with staff development opportunities. Furthermore,
the Group commits to deliver high quality products grounded on
ethical business conduct and supply chain management, as well as
to engage meaningfully in the community.

BRE - HEaRERRS

ERRIERRBRIE - EBREREE#E
BERZREEEER  BERBRELERE
BRAERABCR - I - BRMRXAREME LT
RAERE - HERERREPINRRIZEE
M EE o REEETRIFECABERE A Y
AEENBELRCETNREXNBRATE - BE
Rt - AEERFERIEE LT EAMEE
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B RSB AR HERHR o

HEEF
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Aspect B1: Employment

The Group employed 57 employees, of which 39 and 18 are male
and female staff respectively as at the end of the Year. The Group’s
employees are all full-time, with the majority of staff in the age
range of 31-60. In terms of the workforce by region, around 25 and
14 of the Group’s employees were located in Xuzhou and Huaian
respectively, with the remaining staff located in other regions of
the PRC and Hong Kong. The detail of workforce by age group and
region is presented at table below.

Employees

&8

Group

rEE

By Age

RER
Under 30
30BRE AT
31-40
312405
41 -50
418505%
51-60
51Z605%
Above 60
6057 A

By Region

RibE
Xuzhou
=M
Huaian
KL
Shenzhen
el
Hong Kong
BE

1 The employment data in headcount was obtained from the Group's
Human Resources Department based on the employment contracts
entered into between the Group and its employees. The data covered
employees engaged in a direct employment relationship with the
Group according to relevant local laws and workers whose work and/
or workplace was controlled by the Group. The methodology adopted
for reporting on employment data set out above was based on “How
to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on
Social KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange.
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ETEB1 : EfE

RAFERAELBEREESTEREE  EREER
ZHERRIAEIOARIBA - AEBMEES AR
B KBOEIFRAE3IIE60R ° IZRE S
DIREEH - REELH25BRI14BEE DRI
BHRMEER - AR EEMmnERES
RERER iR B DR EBBEFIBEN W
T °

Unit 2023 2022
B 20234 20224F
person 57 57
A
person 2 4
A
person 24 22
A
person 15 18
A
person 10 10
A
person 6 3
A
person 25 24
A
person 14 16
A
person 4 4
A
person 14 13
A

1 BREHBERREAREREER ZHIZNE
RER - RAKENANERES - HBUR
RERBEHNEMEEARAEEEEXERA
RHRBARE TN, S TSI AEE
ZHINE T o DRERTEEARANTE
DERBZAEANNAREIRE  HEak
ERIE M3 M HRERIERREE
Ml
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Based on the principles of fairness and equality, the Group’s human
resources policies adhere to relevant labour laws, regulations and
industry practices, covering areas such as compensation, dismissal,
promotion, working hours, recruitment, rest periods, diversity and
other benefits and welfare. During the Year, the Group did not
encounter any incidents of non-compliance with all major applicable
laws and regulations related to employment at all operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not limited
to the Labour Law of the PRC, Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
and Minimum Wage Ordinance.

Remuneration and welfare

Employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive level and
are rewarded according to their performance and experience. The
Group’s human resources policies outline the terms and conditions
of employment, expectations for employees’ conduct and
behaviours, and employees’ rights and benefits. The remuneration
package of employees may include incentive schemes, discretionary
bonuses and/or over-time payments, in addition to salaries. Any
applicable restrictions on wage deduction are stated transparently
in the human resources policies. The promotion and remuneration
of the Group’s employees are subject to periodic review.

Recruitment and promotion

The human resources department of respective subsidiary conducts
a comprehensive recruitment review process based on pre-
determined job function requirements. The Group’s recruitment
and promotion process are carried out in a fair and open manner
for all employees; employees are recognized and rewarded by
their contribution, work performance and skills, and outcomes will
not be affected by any discrimination on the grounds of age, sex,
marital status, family status, race, disability, nationality, religion,
political affiliation and sexual orientation and other factors. In
the case of dismissal, adherence to the Group’s human resources
policies ensures the entire procedure is compliant with statutory
requirements.
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Anti-discrimination and diversity

We embrace inclusive employment that builds a respectful
workplace. The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does
not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, marital status, family
status, race, disability, nationality, religion, political affiliation and
sexual orientation. Personnel staff, line manager and all other
employees who may be involved in staff recruitment receive training
in non-discriminatory practices. We promote a harmonious and
respectful workplace for all. With the aim to ensure fair and equal
protection for all employees, the Group has zero-tolerance for
sexual harassment or other forms of abuse in the workplace in any
form, which is a violation of the labour laws.

Employee communications

The Group'’s policies and procedures included in staff handbooks
are reviewed and updated regularly. The Group discourages
and disallows any behaviour that violates the regulations in staff
handbooks. Offenders will receive a warning, and the Group has
the right to terminate the employment contract with offenders
for any serious violations. The Group’s staff grievance mechanism
provides confidential channels by which staff may report suspected
cases of rights infringement, which are then handled according to
formal procedures.

Work-life balance

We seek to cultivate a culture of healthy work-life balance. The
working hours management policy ensures no excessive working
hours. The Group, subject to the human resources policies of
respective subsidiary, assists staff to balance commitments outside
of work. Regular reviews are held to refine and improve work-
life balance arrangements. To encourage social bonding in the
workplace, the Group arranged recreational events during the Year,
such as staff leisure activities that promote cohesive bonding among
employees.
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During the Year, the Group’s employee turnover rate was 5%.
The table below presents the turnover rate by gender, age and
geographical region.

Turnover rate

Group

REE

By Gender

g el
Male
St
Female
i

By Age

RER
Under 30
30BREA T
31-40
31E405%
41 -50
41E505%
51-60
512 605%
Above 60
605 A £

By Region

BiE
Xuzhou
RN
Huaian
ER
Hong Kong
BB

1 The turnover data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s
Human Resources Department based on the employment contracts
entered into between the Group and its employees. Turnover rate
was calculated by dividing the number of employees who resigned
in 2023 by the number of employees in 2023. The methodology
adopted for reporting on turnover data set out above was based on
“How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance
on Social KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Aspect B2: Workplace health and safety

The Group is committed to create and maintain a workplace that
minimises safety risk and maximises the health and welfare of our
employees. It is of paramount importance to ensure a safe and
healthy workplace for our employees. The Group's “Guidelines
on Occupational Safety and Health” was established to inform
employees of potential health and safety hazards in the workplace,
and the corresponding preventative measures. During the Year,
the Group did not encounter any incident of non- compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to occupational health
and safety at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Work

Safety.

The Group spares no effort to safeqguard the safety of our
employees and the workplace. We adopt the best practices through

the following safety policies and procedures.

° All safety management system responsibilities and
accountabilities are identified and allocated. We conduct
safety risk assessments that identify and control work hazards
within the prescribed hierarchy of control, and residual risk
evaluation within the guidelines. We take a prevention-
orientation approach where on-site inspections are conducted
frequently to rectify any non- conformances before further
complications. We will also establish the rectification

measures according to safety inspection results;

. We implement transparent mechanisms for reporting hazards,
injuries, illnesses and close calls. It is ensured all accidents
are investigated and reviewed. Working with line managers,
corrective actions that address root causes are drawn up. Any
non-compliance to safety rules and regulations, negligence of

duties, irresponsibility is to be held responsible;

o We have systematic claims management mechanisms
for personnel injured at work. In the unfortunate event
of an incident, we place great importance on a healthy
rehabilitation process. We assist a smooth rehabilitation
process whereby the well-being and self-esteem of the

individual is promoted; and
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. We ensure that persons performing tasks are competent
and training attendance records are well documented. All
new employees undergo general safety orientations. Sign-
in procedures are implemented for contractors and visitors
to ensure their safety. All subcontracted work, such as
construction work, is to be performed with equally stringent
safety standards. Prior to work commencement, we request
the safety risk assessment reports and monitor the situations
at regular intervals.

The Group had consecutively attained a zero rate of work-related
fatalities in the past three years and there is no lost days due to
work injury during the Year. If any case occurred, the cases would
be handled according to internal accident handling procedures and
reported to the relevant authority in compliance with the law. The
filed cases will be used as training materials to assist employees to
prevent reoccurrence.
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Aspect B3: Development and training

People are our greatest assets. We tailor the macro-level
development of our human capital to the Group’s corporate
strategy. At respective subsidiaries, the Group develops yearly
training plans that comply with relevant statutory requirements and
cater to the needs of our staff. During annual appraisal sessions,
in-depth consultations ensure micro-level training needs are
identified. Internal training programmes provided by the Group
include induction training, on-the-job training, mentoring schemes,
and cross-departmental training. To further promote continuous
development, staff is entitled to educational leaves to attend
external programmes, such as external public trainings, lectures
and seminars. The Group provides tuition reimbursement for
eligible staff to engage in programmes that enrich job knowledge.
During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with statutory requirements related to staff training and
development at all operating regions.
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During the Year, a total number of 15 employees have attended
training, of which 67% (2022: 69%) and 33% (2022: 31%) were
male and female respectively. In terms of employee category, out of
the 15 (2022: 16) trained employees, 7% (2022: 6%), 7% (2022:
6%), 33% (2022: 32%), and 53% (2022: 56%) of employees
from director, technician, administration management and ordinary
employee. 26% and 28% of total male and female employees
respectively attended our training course. In terms of employee
category, 14%, 11%, 42% and 28% of employees trained were
of director, technician, administration management and ordinary
employee respectively.

Percentage of employees trained
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Group

rEE

By Gender

g Edall
Male
el
Female
it

By Position

R
Director
B
Technician
BT A B
Administration management
THEBRAB
Ordinary employee
—RET

1. The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human
Resources Department. Training refers to the vocational training that
the Group’s employees attended in 2023 and 2022. The methodology
adopted for reporting on the number and percentage of employees
trained set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report
— Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the
Stock Exchange.
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During the Year, the Group has provided a total of 240 training
hours for staff, which averages to 4.1 and 4.4 hours per male
and female staff. In term of employment category, an average
of 2.3, 1.8, 6.7 and 4.4 training hours per staff were received by
director, technician, administration management and general staff
respectively.

Average training hours

F 1935 3B B
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Group

rEH

By Gender

g el
Male
St
Female
i

By Position

R
Director
B
Technician
BT A B
Administration management
THEBAR
Ordinary employee
—RETL

2. The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human
Resources Department. Training refers to the vocational training that
the Group’s employees attended in 2023 and 2022. The methodology
adopted for reporting on the number and percentage of employees
trained set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report
— Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the
Stock Exchange.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group has established and implemented anti-child and forced
labour policies that meet the highest legal and ethical standards.
We do not engage in or condone the unlawful employment or
exploitation of children in the workplace or the use of forced
labour. Staff handbooks contain clear policies relating to relevant
labour laws, regulations and industry practices, covering areas such
as compensation, dismissal, promotion, working hours, recruitment,
rest periods, diversity and other benefits and welfare. Employment
contracts stipulate terms and conditions in adherence to statutory
regulations, and are available in multiple languages as necessary.
The rights and freedoms of every individual are protected as no
worker is asked for surrender identification documents nor lodge
fees or deposits as a condition of employment. Cases of child labour
in our businesses are averted by conducting age verification of all
job applicants. Any employee that suspects a breach of the policy
should submit reports through grievance mechanisms of respective
subsidiaries.

During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to anti-
child and anti-forced labour practices at all operating regions. Major
applicable laws and regulations include, but are not limited to, the
Labour Law of the PRC.

Aspect B5: Supply chain management

Leveraging on our status as a major industry player, we recognise
the multiplied impact through engaging our suppliers. The Group
is committed to develop and maintain effective and mutually
beneficial working relationships with our business partners.
During the Year, we have partnered with a total of 30 suppliers
and subcontractors from Mainland China, with 15 in Jiangsu, 6 in
Zhejiang, 2 in Hunan, 2 in Shanghai, 2 in Guangdong, 1 in Yunnan,
1 in Beijing and 1 in Shandong. Sub-contracted work includes
binding and types of hand-work at some operating regions.
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The supplier code of conduct of respective subsidiaries requires
full compliance with all applicable local and national laws. They
must ensure all operations are environmentally-responsible,
uphold human rights and business ethics. All engaged suppliers
and subcontractors are required to submit statements declaring
conformity to the respective code of conduct. Self-assessment
questionnaires and/or internal audits are used to evaluate supply
chains. To promote accountability, some supplier premises are
provided with confidential communication channels to report actual
or suspected breaches of the code of conduct. In order to reduce
the risk associated with the supply chain from service and products
quality provided by suppliers, we evaluate existing suppliers on a
regular basis and terminate the supply relationship with those found
to be in serious non-compliance or whose quality fails to meet the
requirements.

In addition to engaging suppliers, sustainable procurement is
another avenue to mitigate the impact of supply chain activities.
We collaborate with key suppliers in support of environmentally-
responsible procurement. New supplier is selected according to our
selection criteria to maintain the Group's sustainable development.
During the Year, we prioritise the procurement of office equipment
with energy-saving features, replaceable parts that are supported
by supplier-provided recycling schemes. Also, we will continue
to convey our expectation to our suppliers and assess their
performance in term of our sustainability vision as well as encourage
them to prioritise the adoption of environmentally friendly products.

Aspect B6: Product responsibility

The Group offers quality products and services grounded on
responsible operating practices. We commit to meet customer
needs through innovation and sound business ethics.

Product quality and safety

Displaying ability, professionalism and reliability in everything we do,
we offer products and services with added value. During the Year,
the Group did not encountered any incident of non-compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations related to product/service
quality and safety at all operating regions. Major applicable laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to, the Product Quality
Act of PRC. During the Year, the Group has not received any
complaints or recall any products sold or shipped subject to safety
and health reasons.
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With a customer-focused and evidence-based approach, the
Group strives for continual improvement to product quality. The
Group’s management system is implemented through performing
quality assurance to examine the product’s quality against required
parameters at every stage of the production process. Input raw
materials are tested against customers’ technical specifications.
Finished products undergo inspections prior to packaging and
delivery to clients. Each department is tasked with achieving their
own quality based targets in consideration of both the industry and
market standards.

The Group also implements a source-to-end inspection framework
from material procurement and sourcing process to finished
product and storage. Any quality defect material or product will be
suspended from production line in order to prevent potential risks
and protect interests of clients and the Group.

The Group has formulated the Product Recall Management Policy
with recall procedures to retrieve any defective products. If any non-
conforming products are found, they must be recalled in a timely
manner. The sales team will review the non-conforming products,
record the actions taken and prepare a report to identify the quality
problems and areas for improvement in order to improve the overall
consistency of the product in the future.

We are responsible to ensure the quality of power stations
throughout their life cycle. We have established internal quality
control policies to strengthen the maintenance and management
of the power grid. For example, we have implemented measures
to detect, track and handle equipment defects on time, which can
also accelerate the repair and maintenance process. The measures
can further prevent the significant impacts on the quality of power
generation and ensure a stable operation of the power plants. We
have also increased the frequency of conducting the inspection to
minimise the potential risk of equipment, ensure the safe operation
of equipment and enhance the reliability of power operation.
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Adhering to the “customer-focused” service concept, the Group
provides a customer service hotline to address inquiries during
the office hours. In order to ensure the customers’ complaints
are resolved promptly and securely, the Group has developed the
Customer Complaints Handling Process, which standardizes the
process for handling customer complaints. The Group is committed
to identifying the areas for improvements in the process so that we
can further improve by correcting or remedying. After received the
customer complaints, the designated personnel from the sales and
marketing department will contact the customer to understand the
customer’s satisfaction with the outcome of the complaint handling
to ensure the customer is satisfied with the results before the
complaint is closed. The sales and marketing department will also
provide timely feedback to the relevant departments. The Group
will continue to improve the complaint management process,
strengthen customer communication, evaluate product service
experiences, and ensure customer satisfaction.

Ethical operating practices

The Group places great value in conducting all aspects of our
businesses with integrity and honest values. From the protection
of data privacy and intellectual property to ethical marketing
communication, our robust management approaches ensure even
the most trivial aspects are not overlooked. During the Year, the
Group did not encountered any incident of non-compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to the protection of
data privacy and intellectual property to the ethical marketing
communication at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, the Criminal and Civil
law of PRC.

Information security safeguarding

The Group is committed to protect the privacy and confidentiality of
personal data collected. The Group has established clear protocols
on handling personal data recorded from our customers and
employees. We collect data only in a lawful and fair way, for directly
related purposes of which the data subject is clearly notified.
Adhering to protocol requirements, we ensure the data is accurate
and not kept longer than necessary. Personal data inventories are
secured to prevent any unauthorised or accidental access, such as
firewalls and physical protection.
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The Group has established the privacy policy on handling personal
data recorded from our customers, staff, as well as end-users of our
online services. The Group secures the personal information from
unauthorised access, use or disclosure. Recognising the materiality
of security risks, the Group evaluates security risks related to the use
of information technology.

Advertising and product labelling

Responsible marketing practices are crucial to gaining customer trust
and confidence. All sales promotions should be dealt with a fair and
honourable manner. The sales manager or equivalent of respective
subsidiaries ensures all public sales and marketing information are
reviewed and approved of its trueness and completeness. Any forms
of promotions must not contain any misleading information and
need to be designed to meet reasonable consumer expectations. All
product labelling is an accurate representation of the sourcing and
content of products.

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieve and maintain the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. We adopt
the lowest level of acceptance for corruption risks and we
build a culture of zero tolerance to any related practices. Anti-
corruption code of conducts at respective subsidiaries stipulates
our management approach towards anti-corruption compliance.
During the Year, the Group did not encounter any incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations at all operating
regions. Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, the Criminal Law of the PRC. There was no concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices that were bought against the
Group or its employees in 2023.

The code of conducts applies to all employees of the Group, and
must be complied at all times. The Group prohibits the provision or
receipt of gifts and/or entertainment that could be considered of
material value. Senior management is also clearly provided guidance
on what constitutes abuse of office, such as regarding the misuse
of company’s assets for personal interest. With regard to conflict
of interests, the fundamental rule is to avoid any conflict of interest
as far as practicable. In the event of an inevitable case, the conflict
of interest is required to be declared so that appropriate resolution
actions can be taken. During the year, the Group provide employees
of all levels with anti-corruption trainings in order to enhance the
awareness of anti-corruption.
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The development of robust internal controls is the key to our
management approach. Any offering and acceptance of gifts or
advantages are recorded and handled via a transparent mechanism.
Each subsidiary company has a form of whistle-blowing channel for
employees, customers and suppliers where any suspected cases of
misconduct or failure to act are reported and handled by the Audit
Committee.

The Group promotes fair and open competition through code of
conducts on combating anti-competitive practices. We prohibit
cartels, and any activities of trade associations and industry bodies
which prevent, restrict or distort competition. No discussion or
agreement is carried out on matters related to pricing, production
volume and tenders with competitors. The Group recognises
that adherence to the principles of competition is essential to the
development of long-term relationships with our stakeholders on
mutual trust.

Aspect B8: Community investment

The Group is committed to operate as a responsible corporate
and continually supporting the economic and social vitality of
local communities through corporate sponsorships and charitable
donations. Furthermore, the Group sees high literacy as a
foundation for the advancement of society. The Group believes
public welfare is important and necessary for the development
of the Group. We always seek to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates.

During the Year, the Group’s volunteers visited Weiji Town (Z2545)
in Xuzhou City, Jiangsu Province, donated approximately RMB3,000
and carried out activities like cleaned up the roads and visited the
elderly and tidy their homes. We believe that the development of
a better future for our community relies on joint participation of
people, corporations and the government. In addition, the Group
also encourages all employees to actively participate in volunteer
activities and environmental protection activities. We hope it can
raise their concern for environment and society, and thus inspiring
more people to participate in community services and develop a
better future for our community.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guo Yumin, aged 62, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012.
Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall management and formulation of
business strategy of the Group. Mr. Guo graduated from the distant
learning college of the School of the Central Committee of Communist
Party of China in 1988, majoring in economic management. Since
1998, Mr. Guo has been engaging in cigarette packaging business
and established a strong business tie with the senior members of some
cigarette manufacturers. He brings extensive business and management
experience in commercial business to our management team. In 2005,
Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of Commerce
and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In 2010, Mr.
Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and has been
its legal representative since then. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu, an
executive Director.

Ms. Xia Yu, aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. She is responsible for general management of the Group. Ms.
Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu Commerce
College (which was combined with other colleges to form Yangzhou
University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia has more than 27
years of experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as business
management and financial management in cigarette packaging business.
Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Fan Qing, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business
management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both
the PRC and Hong Kong. Ms. Fan received a master’s degree in business
administration from the Graduate School of Renmin University of China in
2000. She obtained a certificate issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
after completing a training course for the senior management member of
a listed company in the PRC. She had been serving as the vice-president
of Shenzhen Capital Group Co. Ltd. for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently
the chairman of the board of directors of an investment management
company in Shenzhen and the independent director of Shenzhen Terca
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: SZ002213), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Dai Tin Yau, aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 29 May 2020. Mr. Dai graduated from University
of South Australia with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in May 2009
and graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a master’s
degree in professional accounting in March 2016. He is currently a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Dai worked in P. K. Wong & Co. from May 2004 to
March 2008 and his last position was audit semi-senior. Mr. Dai then
worked in Y. F. Pang & Co. from December 2008 to July 2011 where he
last served as an assistant manager in the assurance department, and in
RSM Nelson Wheeler from November 2011 to April 2013 as a senior in
the audit and assurance services department. Since May 2014, Mr. Dai has
taken the position as an audit senior in Arken Consulting Limited. After
leaving Arken Consulting Limited in June 2015, Mr. Dai co-founded Prism
CPA Limited in December 2015 and served as a director since then.

Mr. Chan Yin Lam, aged 43, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 29 May 2020. Mr. Chan graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration (majoring in accountancy and management information
systems) in July 2002 and graduated from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology with a master’s degree in business
administration in November 2010. He is currently a Chartered Financial
analyst charter holder and a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan was an associate and subsequently
promoted to the senior associate position during his employment in
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. from September 2002 to May 2006. Mr.
Chan worked in Somerley Limited from June 2006 to December 2009,
and he last served as a senior manager responsible for equity capital
market issues and financial advisory assignments. He then worked in
Haitong International Securities Group of Companies from May 2010 to
June 2013, and his last position was senior vice president in the corporate
finance department. Mr. Chan joined China Merchants Securities (HK)
Co., Limited from July 2013 and his last position prior to his departure
in February 2018 was executive director in financial institutions team of
corporate finance and capital markets division. Since March 2018, Mr.
Chan has taken the position as managing director and head of corporate
finance of investment banking department in Fosun Hani Securities
Limited (“Fosun Hani"), and currently he is also the co-Head of Investment
Banking Department and responsible officer of Fosun Hani to carry on
type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under the SFO.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Zhenghua, aged 68, graduated from a self-taught course in
Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University in 1986, and obtained
the qualification certification as an economist in 1993. Mr. Dong passed
the uniform examination organised by the Chinese government authorities
and obtained the qualifications for enterprise legal adviser in 2003. Mr.
Dong possesses extensive experience in advising and handling corporate
related legal matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong graduated
from a 2-year course in laws jointly organised by the China University of
Political Science and Law and the Open University of China and obtained
the qualification of intermediate professional manager as approved by the
Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager Training & Certification
Committee. Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal advisor of the
Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of the Group.

Besides the senior management mentioned above, various business
of the Group are respectively under the direct responsibility of the
executive Directors as named previously, who are also regarded as senior
management of the Group.
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The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously abide by the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group's corporate governance practices for the Year are based on the
principles and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") version up to 31 December 2023 as set out in Part 2 of Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules.

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code during the Year except for the deviations from
code provision C.2.1 of the Code as stated below.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the Year, there was no chief executive in the Company,
details of the deviation are set out in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer”.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

RE-ELECTION AND CHANGE OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo")
and Mr. Dai Tin Yau (“Mr. Dai"”) will retire as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the “AGM”). Mr. Guo and Mr. Dai, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the AGM.

Mr. Guo, being an executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 13th July
2021 and may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Dai, being an independent non-executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 29 May 2022 and may be terminated by either party by giving at
least three months’ written notice.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MODEL CODE FORDIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code") as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions for the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises two executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are
set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Dai Tin Yau
Mr. Chan Yin Lam

The brief biographical details of and relationship among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Year. All independent non-executive
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each of the Directors are confirmed that they can give sufficient time
and attention to the Company’s affairs and should not accept the
appointment if they cannot do so.

Corporate Governance Report
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Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Save as disclosed above,
there are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.

Functions of the Board

We are heading by an effective Board which should assume responsibility
for its leadership and control, and be collectively responsible for
promoting its success by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
has established the Company’s purpose, values and strategy, and satisfy
itself that these and the Company’s culture are aligned. All Directors are
acting with integrity and promoting the desired culture.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of
the Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group's financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management and the Board reviewed
the written delegation arrangements regularly.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision A.2.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively encourages
Directors to voice their opinion and be fully engaged in the Board's affairs
so as to contribute to the Board's effective functioning. The Board, under
the leadership of the Chairman, has adopted good corporate governance
practices and procedures and taken appropriate steps to promote effective
communication and ongoing engagement with Shareholders and other
stakeholders, as outlined later in this report.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this report, there
have been no chief executive officer in the Company. Mr. Guo Yumin
acted as the Chairman of the Board, and responsible for the overall
management, including corporate governance practice and formulation of
business strategy of the Group.

The Board does not have the intention to fill the position of the chief
executive officer of the Company at present and believes that the absence
of the chief executive officer will not have adverse effect to the Company,
as decisions of the Company will be made collectively by the executive
Directors. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the
Board and the need of appointment of a suitable candidate to perform
the role of chief executive. Appointment will be made to fill the post to
comply with code provision C.2.1 of the Code if necessary. During the
Year, one meeting has been held by the Chairman of the Board with
the independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of other
executive Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them A.2.1 to fulfill their duties properly. In
compliance with code provision of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has
been given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings by the Chairman, who is responsible for ensuring that all
Directors receive adequate information in a timely manner. Directors are
free to contribute and share their views at meetings and major decisions
will only be taken after deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who
are considered having conflict of interests or material interests in the
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted in
the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions further, a physical Board meeting with the attendance of
all independent non-executive Directors will be held. Full minutes are
prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments, the final version of which are endorsed in the
subsequent Board meeting. Minutes of all Board meetings are kept by the
secretary of the meeting and open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice upon request by any of the Directors.

In the case of a transaction or matter submitted to the Board for approval,
the Directors may, if they deem it necessary to seek independent views
and inputs, request the management to submit professional asset
valuations, legal opinion, accounting opinion, financial opinion, other
professional opinion or quotations from Independent third parties at the
Group's expense. All individual Directors have separate and independent
access to the senior management.

Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the Group
provides to the Directors, on a regular basis, monthly updates and other
information with respect to the performance and business activities of the
Group. It enables the Board to make informed assessment of financial and
other decisions.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.
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Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are summarised as follows:

Board
meeting
=g
=f
Executive Directors YiTES

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) BEREE(FE) 5/5
Ms. Xia Yu BRaT 5/5

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Ms. Fan Qing BERT 5/5
Mr. Dai Tin Yau BRELE 5/5
Mr. Chan Yin Lam REREE 5/5

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “"Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012 with
written terms of reference which are in compliance with the code
provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee currently has three members
comprising Mr. Dai Tin Yau (being the Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

Corporate Governance Report
i%é«*—hé\ﬁﬁﬁ:

HZE2023F12A31BA EFERITHARRESES
% CERLECeeR  FNZEgem  REZEE

BEHRMERAGHEFBHRIMT

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Committee
meeting meeting

ENZEE HMZEE REZEE
g3 g2 S

Committee

committee
meeting

General
meeting

REXE

/AT " 1 171
NATER  NATER  NATER 1
33 " " 1
33 " NATER 11
3B NATER " 0N
EEZES
BEROHUBTRES  DhRBERZEg([E&
Zag)]) FMEES(FHEES D RREEEES
(MREEZEg]) FHRZESNEAREEERNAEAR
AU RIS - DABVERHEITE I - LHES

ERER LREEME -

BEREEE

AAEA20124F6 522 BARIESFRIAY <P BIMESUR B AL
VEZZE®  UWEETHBERGE  cEZZE
CWME-FKE  DRIRIAREEE(EZZESE
F) - BRBLZETRBRERLE  2EHABYIENT
Bx o

JERZEREBERAR
2023F F 2R

61



62

Corporate Governance Report
EEERME

During the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the final results
of the Group for 2022 and the 2023 interim results and report of
the Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
internal audit function for the Year. The Group’s final results for the Year
had been reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings are
set out above.

The Company has provided sufficient resources to the Audit Committee
to perform its duty.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof;
(ii) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual executive
Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them;
and (iii) reviewing and/or approving the matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. No Director shall participate in
any discussion about his or her own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee currently consists of three members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing
(Chairperson), Mr. Dai Tin Yau, both of which are independent non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director. The
majority of members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The remuneration of the Directors was
determined with reference to their respective experience, responsibilities
within the Group and general market conditions. The Company
has adopted the Code to make recommendations to the Board on
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the members
of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings are set out
above.
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At the meetings, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors
for the Year.

The Company has provided sufficient resources to the Remuneration
Committee to perform its duty. The Remuneration Committee could seek
independent professional advice, at the Group’s expense, to perform it
responsibilities when it finds necessary.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the structure, size, diversity
and composition (including the age, gender, cultural and academic
background, skills, knowledge and professional experience) of the Board
on a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed change; (ii) identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iii)
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr. Guo
Yumin (Chairman), an executive Director, and chairman of the Board
Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, both of which are independent
non-executive Directors. The majority of members of the Nomination
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee adopted a diversity policy
setting out the approach to diversify the members of the Board. During
the Year and at the date of this report, the Board has five Directors, two
of which are female. The Board determines that the gender diversity has
been achieved in respect of the board. The Nomination Committee works
to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and
objectives. All Board appointments would continue to be made based
on meritocracy. Selection of candidates would be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision would be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates would bring to
the Board, our business model as well as the needs of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the diversity
policy from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the diversity policy.
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The Company has provided sufficient resources to the Nomination
Committee to perform its duty. The Nomination Committee could seek
independent professional advice, at the Group’s expense, to perform it
responsibilities when it finds necessary.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting are set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.

NOMINATION POLICY

Apart from the aforesaid, the Board has adopted a “Nomination Policy”
on 31 December 2018 in relation to the nomination, appointment, re-
appointment of new Directors and the nomination procedure of the
Company, which provides that in evaluating and selecting any candidate
for directorship, the Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates’
character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, diversity on the Board, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such other
criteria that are appropriate to the business of the Company.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has recommended to the
Board for the re-election of Director in accordance with the following
process as set out in the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee:

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board would review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Directors and his/her level of participation and performance on the
Board.

ii. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board would also review
and determine whether the retiring Director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above. If an independent non-executive Directors
subject to the re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board will also assess and consider whether the independent
non-executive Director will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.
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ii. ~ The Nomination Committee and/or the Board would then make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the general meeting.

In addition, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the overall
contribution and service to the Company of each of the retiring Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Therefore, the Nomination Committee recommended to the Board that
each of Mr. Guo Yumin and Mr. Dai Tin Yau should be proposed to the
Shareholders for re-election at the annual general meeting on 31 May
2024.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a “Dividend Policy” on 29 March 2019. A
summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and requirement of the
relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to the Shareholders
if the Group is profitable, operations environment is stable and there is no
significant investment or commitment made by the Group, after taking
into account the factors as detailed below and determined by the Board
from time to time. The remaining net profits will be used for Group’s
development and operations. The Policy allows the Company to declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to the annual dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account,
inter alia:

(@)  the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c)  the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(e)  the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;
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(f) general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal and external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

(g)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Any final dividends declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of Shareholders at an annual general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board
may from time to time pay to the Shareholders such interim dividends as
appear to the directors to be justified by the profits of the Group.

The policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for
approval if amendments are required.

DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Company adopted a diversity policy setting out the
approach to diversify the workforce of the Company. The Company works
to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and
objectives. Selection of employees would be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender,age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills,knowledge and length of service.

Our Group employed a total 57 employees, of whom 38 were male and
19 were female. The Board believes that the proportion has reached the
target of gender diversity in terms of overall workforce, and the Group
will maintain a similar proportion in the foreseeable future.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND WHISTLE-BLOWING
CHANNEL

For the Group’s Anti-corruption policy and Whistle-blowing channel,please
refer to “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this Annual
Report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company as at the date
of this report.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

In compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the Code, all Directors during
the Year, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu, Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Dai Tin
Yau and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, had participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors had provided the relevant record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable trainings
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the
Year fell within the following bands:
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of
the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
fee payable to RSM Hong Kong in respect of its statutory audit services
provided to the Company was approximately HK$1.0 million. Fees for
non-audit services for the same period was approximately HK$18,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the senior management are responsible for improving and
monitoring the risk management and internal control of the Group. In
this regard, the Audit Committee had performed a regular review of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group within the
Reporting Period in which the results were summarised and reported to
the Board. The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group for each
financial year. The Group also sets up an internal audit team comprise
management of subsidiaries, which plays a major role in monitoring the
corporate governance of the Group and providing objective assurance to
the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated
by the management.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities
of the members in the framework are described as follows:
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Audit Committee

management and internal control systems; and
Review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems annually.

Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level and the
design and performance of the risk management
and internal control systems;

Discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with the management;

Ensure that the internal audit function has sufficient
resources for operation and has a proper position,
review and supervise its performance;

Keep updated of various major risks confronted by
the Group and the risk management status, make
decisions for effective risk control;

Report the risk status of the Group and issues to be
concerned or improved to the Board on a regular
basis;

Facilitate risk management and assessment,
regularly appoint relevant accountable persons to
implement risk assessment;

Organise and promote the establishment of the risk
management system at the Group level;

Review material risk assessment report and various
risk management reports; and

Engage relevant persons to organise and coordinate
various departments and projects to carry out
identification and assessment of significant risks
at the Group level, summarise and analyse such
information, submit risk assessment and various risk
management reports.
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Member Main Responsibilities 24= FESHE

Internal audit e Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk team — REBEHIZBE K o ﬁﬁ%ﬁ]‘%”ﬂﬁﬁ*$’§@ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ’\]

team assessment in compliance with the risk assessment B ST F TR ET A
manual formulated by the Group;

e Review and approve the risk assessment results of o BHME A AHEB AR
the subsidiaries in respect of the business; ®:

e Ensure that the subsidiaries implement effective risk o ERMIB AR ERBRNRERERE:
management;

e Monitor the principal business risks confronted by s BB ARIEHMEEZXEBRR
the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of relevant risk AR AR B IR AR - &
management measures; and

e Allocate resources such as fund and workforce s MBARINEESEREBNEFE
to the subsidiaries for implementation of the risk /JZE?LA%EJ—L EEIER -

assessment projects.

The Process Used to Identify, Assess and Management %3 - FFEREETERMTARE
of Principal Risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows: REEREREE RSO T

Risk identification - identify the current risks confronted. [ Bz 4% 1) — BB RIPTE ¥R o

Risk analysis — conduct analysis on the risk including the impact & DT — ETRBRINT  REFEREER
extent and possibility of occurrence. BEERTREM o

Risk response — choose a proper risk response method and develop &k & & — BEHENRREYTERSIER
a risk mitigation strategy. WAR R o

Control measures  — propose up-to-date internal control measures and 22 4i|# 3 — FRAR ST A BP BE 1 B K R R B
policy and process. E

Risk control — continuously monitor the risks identified and  EB&iz — TEEEMERNRR R EEEEA
implement relevant internal control measures to ERESYEREBE - DATEIR R B FE ¥ 5K
ensure the effective operation of the risk response & B WEEE ©
strategy.

Risk management - summarise results of risk assessment and analysis ~ ERERRE — BIERBTE - 2T RAIBEZX
report and internal audit, formulate and report an action HR %U;E&#Emﬁ@ﬁr% o
plan.
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The Process Used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems and to
Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

The Group establishes a risk management information and communication
channel that is functional within the whole basic risk control procedure,
connects different levels in the reporting system and different
departments and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate and
complete communication of information, laying a solid foundation for the
monitoring and improvement of risk management.

Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect
and examine their own risk management process in order to locate
the shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection
and examination reports are delivered to the Group’s risk management
department in time.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no material issue relating to
the Group’s risk management and internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group; and (ii) that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the Year.

The Board considers that its risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (“Ms. Pang”) is an employee of the Company was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 1 October 2017. Ms. Pang
has adequate knowledge on the Company to discharge her duty as the
Company Secretary. Ms. Pang confirmed that she had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to
Board approval. Whilst the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of
the Board, all members of the Board have access to her advice and service.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

A shareholders communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012.

The objective of the shareholders communication policy ensures that the
Shareholders are informed of balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including the Group’s strategies, businesses, major
developments and financial performance) in a factual and timely manner
and to enable them to exercise their rights as the Shareholders in an
informed manner. The Company aims to be open and transparent with
its Shareholders and encourages Shareholders’ active participation at the
Company's general meetings. Information would be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through the Company’s corporate communications
(such as interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars), annual
general meetings and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Interim reports, annual
reports and circulars are sent to the Shareholders in a timely manner
and are also available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites provide the
Shareholders with the corporate information. Shareholders are provided
with contact details of the Company as set out in the above paragraph
and under “contact us” information on the Company’s website at
www.sheentai.com in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. Shareholders, investors and
interested parties can make enquiries directly to the Company through the
following e-mail: investorrelation@sheentai.com. In addition, Shareholders
can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company, if they have any enquiries
about their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.
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The Company’s annual general meeting allows the Directors to meet
and communicate with the Shareholders. The Company ensures that
Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. The chairman of the
annual general meeting proposes separate resolutions for each issue to be
considered. Annual general meeting proceedings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company follows good corporate governance
practices. The notice of the annual general meeting is distributed to all
Shareholders at least 21 days prior to the annual general meeting and the
accompanying circular also sets out details of each proposed resolution
and other relevant information as required under the Listing Rules.
Separate resolution is proposed for each issue to be considered at the
meeting. The Directors and the members of various committees would
attend and answer questions raised at the annual general meeting of
the Company. The auditor of the Company will also attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor independence. The chairman of the annual general meeting
exercises his power under the Articles to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for demanding and conducting
a poll are explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Voting
results are posted on the Company’s website on the day of the annual
general meeting.

After taking into account that the Shareholders have multiple channels
to communicate their views as mentioned above as well as the steps
taken by the Board to solicit and understand the views of Shareholders
and stakeholders during the year ended 31 December 2023 including
but not limited to open discussion with the Shareholders during the
annual general meeting, the Board’s review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy was found to be
sound and adequate.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

HK Address: Room 1903,19/F, Jubilee Centre, 18 Fenwick Street,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: investorrelations@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/
or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the Articles for including
a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting. The requirements and
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’
Right to Convene an Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a retiring
Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office
or at the Registration Office no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.
Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the Year.
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The Directors are hereby to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in the consolidated financial statements Note 21 in this annual
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, Chapter
622, can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent to the businesses in which the
Group is engaged and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarised below:

(i) The Groupreliesonasolecustomerin
photovoltaic power business segment

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on the
government authority State Grid Jiangsu Electric Power Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Power Supply Branch* (“State Grid Jiangsu”), as it is
the sole customer of the Group in photovoltaic power business
segment since 2015. The Directors consider, with reference to
“Several Opinions of the State Council on Promoting the Healthy
Development of the Photovoltaic Industry”* (BI75b% BRI Y ik
EXERERMETER), "Administrative Measures for the Full
Guaranteed Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power Generation”*
(ATBAREREE2BREEWIEEIEILE), “Regulations on the
Supervision of the Full-scale Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power
Generation by Grid Enterprises”* ( E¥ 2B RE B AR
BEEEEILE) and “Notice on standardizing the management of
priority generation priority purchase plan”* (GREMELHESELE
BEEFEIBIEMEAL) , the Company’s photovoltaic power plants will
continue to enjoy the guarantee of the local government'’s purchase
of full on-grid electricity and subsidies for renewable energy by
2035.

* For identification purposes only
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(i)

(iii)

However, if there is any change of the relationship with State Grid
Jiangsu, it is not easy for the Company to sell its electricity to other
customers as the electricity market in Xuzhou City has not been
liberalized, which could in turn materially and adversely affect the
business operations and financial performance of the Group.

The Group relies on certain major suppliers

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on certain
major suppliers for a significant portion of the purchases. If they
fail to make timely delivery of their products and the Group fails to
source from other suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner,
the operation of the Group could be delayed. The relationship
between the Group and its customers could also be adversely
affected as a result of any such delays, which could in turn
materially and adversely affect the business operations and financial
performance of the Group.

The fluctuation of exchange rate may have a
material effect on the business and performance
of the Group

The sales of the Group are denominated in RMB and the purchases
are denominated in US$ and RMB. The Group does not engage
in any exchange rate hedging activities. Any fluctuation in the
exchange rates of RMB and US$ may have an adverse effect on
the results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Appreciation of the value of US$ may increase the costs of the
Group and thus subject the Group to increased competition from
domestic competitors, and depreciation in the value of RMB may
adversely affect the earnings, as well as the value of the net assets
and dividends from the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.
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(iv) PRC political, economic and social conditions and
government policies could affect the business of
the Group

All of the operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC and
the Group expects that a majority of the revenue will continue to
be derived from the operations in the PRC. The results of operations
and prospects are subject, to a significant degree, to economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The economy of the
PRC differs from the economies of most developed countries in
many respects, including the extent of government involvement,
the level of development, the growth rate, and government control
of foreign exchange. The Group cannot predict whether changes in
the PRC’s political, economic and social conditions, laws, regulations
and policies will have any material adverse effect on the current or
future business, results of operation or financial condition of the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Details of environmental Policies and performance are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Group is committed to ensuring that the Group’s operation is in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As far as the Directors
are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the

Group. The Group attracts and retains key personnel and talents with
appropriate skills, experience and competence which would complement
and meet the corporate and business objectives of the Group. The Group
ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated and the remuneration
packages of employees are reviewed regularly and necessary adjustments
are made to the remuneration packages to align with the market
standards.
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The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings
to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (for the year ended 31 December 2022: HK$1.0 cent per share).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") to be held on 31 May 2024, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 28 May 2024 to 31 May 2024,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. The record date will be on 31 May 2024. In order to qualify for
attending the AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before

4:30 p.m. on 27 May 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in the consolidated financial statements Note
18 in this annual report.
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LEASE LIABILITIES

Details of lease liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements Note 33 in this annual report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
noncontrolling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out in five year financial summary. This summary does not form part of
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in the
consolidated financial statements Note 27 in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of approximately HK$13.4 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2022: profit attributable to equity
shareholders of approximately HK$7.3 million) have been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and Disposal” in
this annual report, there were no significant investments held nor other
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
and joint ventures during the Year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. During the
Year, the Directors are not aware of any related party transactions which
constituted a non-exempt connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of important event affecting the Group subsequent to the Year
are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Subsequent Events” in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately
99.3% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 84.2% of the total sales for
the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 71.3% of the total purchases for the Year and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 33.0% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and as at the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)

Ms. Xia Yu

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Dai Tin Yau
Mr. Chan Yin Lam
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 15(a) in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 15 and Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements and contracts amongst group companies, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and other director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.
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The independent non-executive Directors had, in the Board meeting
during the Year, reviewed the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited
(“Sheentai BVI”) and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo”) in a deed of non-
competition entered into between Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo in favour
of the Company on 28 June 2012. The independent non-executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of the Non-competition
Undertakings given by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the Year and up
to the date of this annual report. Each of Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo
confirmed that he/it had complied with the Non-competition Undertakings
given by him/it from the date of the Non-competition Undertakings and
up to the date of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong
Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 4(r) in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$648.1 million.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(@ As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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Long Positionin the Shares and the
underlying Shares

Name of Director

EEnR

Capacity/Nature
SH/1EE

Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo"”)

BERAEED (Note 1)

SR EEERETEE)
Beneficial owner (Note 2)

BamEA AME2)

Interest of spouse (Notes 3 and 4)

T B as (P T3 K2 4)
Ms. Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia")

BEE(ExL)) e B Rz (Mt 3E5)

Beneficial owner (Note 3)

EnlEa AMEE3)
Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan")

ez (BEkt]) BamEA A(M5Ee)

(i) Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of
Associated Corporation

Interest of a controlled corporation

Interest of spouse (Note 5)

Beneficial owner (Note 6)
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(i) REROREERGZHRE

Number of
Shares and
underlying
Shares held/
interested Approximate
Fi¥/#%E  percentage of
R R interest
HERGEE EZBEILEAH
1,206,086,000 49.55%
272,356,164 11.19%
33,094,000 1.36%
1,478,442,164 60.74%
33,094,000 1.36%
800,000 0.03%

(i) REBZEEERZER

Number of
Share held/
Name of associated interested  Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/Nature ¥ BE interest
EEnE HEEE B8 5% 8 EEROBE EREDL
Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1 100%
WAL EmlEBA
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse 1 100%
E 2+ (ft5E5) fe (B s
JERZREBER D E
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Notes:

1. Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Sheentai
BVI. Therefore Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all
the 1,206,086,000 Shares held by Sheentai BVI for the purpose of the
SFO. Mr. Guo is the sole director of Sheentai BVI.

2. These 272,356,164 Shares and underlying Shares represent the
272,356,164 Shares owned by Mr. Guo.

3. These 33,094,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent the
33,094,000 Shares owned by Ms. Xia.

4. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo is deemed,
or taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in
which Ms. Xia is interested.

58 Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is deemed,
or taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in
which Mr. Guo is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

6. These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Ms. Fan upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to her.

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2023, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group:

The Company

Capacity/Nature of interest

B0 HEEtE

Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner

EREEA

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) and was expired on 21 June 2022, whilst the Share Option
Scheme has expired the Share Options (as defined below) granted
remain exercisable by the Grantees (as defined below). A summary of the
principal terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out as
follows:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.
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Participants

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial shareholder
of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group, options
to subscribe for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the basis
of his contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.

Total of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares
in issue as at the date of listing of the shares of the Company (or
such numbers of shares as shall result from a sub-division or a
consolidation of the shares of the Company from time to time), i.e.
40,000,000 shares representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of listing. On 25 September 2015, each of
the existing issued and unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company was sub-divided into four
sub-divided shares of HK$0.0025 each (the “Shares Subdivision”).
As such, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company is adjusted from 40,000,000 to
160,000,000.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options (the
“Share Options”) to subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (which were adjusted to
58,400,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each after the Shares Subdivision)
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Company
under the Share Option Scheme (the “Grantees”).
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Therefore, as at the date of this annual report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme and
any other scheme of the Company was 49,550,000 representing
approximately 2.03% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant options, there is no performance target which
must be achieved before any of the options can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on
acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.
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8. Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall
be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant of the option.

9. Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on the date on 22 June 2012 (the date on
which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the
Company) and shall expire at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to subscribe for
a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme. Among the share options granted above,
2,100,000 share options were granted to the Directors to subscribe for a
total of 2,100,000 shares of the Company. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 29 January 2015.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 September
2015 in relation to the adjustment to the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme upon the share subdivision of the Company becoming
effective on 25 September 2015.
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Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under the
Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:
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RASHE B - RIBERE BIR L RITHEERE
BRI

Number of
options
grantedon  Outstanding Outstanding
29 January as at as at
2015 1 January 31 December
®2015% 2023 During the reporting period 2023
1A29A 20235 REREHR 120235
Name of grantee ERERE 1A1H Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 128318
RRARE 8B AT B&{T BT Bt BAH HARTE
Director EZ
Ms. Fan Qing SRRt 800,000 800,000 - - = 800,000
Employees and advisers /£S5 RE/ 57,600,000 48,750,000 - - S
Total fif 58,400,000 49,550,000 - - - 49,550,000

The number of share options which are available for grant under the
scheme mandate of the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2023 and
31 December 2023 is nil.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed approximately 57
fulltime staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind
and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The Group
also established the Share Option Scheme to incentivize the senior
management and employees, further details of which are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report. When reviewing
and determining the specific remuneration packages for the executive
Directors and senior management, the Company takes into consideration
factors such as their individual performance, qualification, experience and
seniority, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. The Group determines
the staff’s remuneration based on factors such as qualifications and work
experience.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
the certain legal actions brought against its Directors and officers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing
Rules.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong.

RSM Hong Kong will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
for the reappointment of RSM Hong Kong as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B R

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 103 to 216, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Impairment of trade receivables;

2. Impairment of loan and other receivables; and

3. Fair value of an investment in convertible loan.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAREHERP N EEEEETEE

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has trade receivables
with net carrying amount of approximately HK$166,623,000.
Reversal of impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year in respect of the
Group’s trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$545,000.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses (“ECL") to be incurred, which is estimated by taking
into account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade receivables, customers’ repayment history and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement. The management engaged a
qualified external valuer to assist in the assessment.

B2 RWFEORRE
B2 A M FRKMEE23

M2023F 128318 © EEBMNESRKFENERFES
49166,623,000/87C - RAFEMGAEBRRANERER &
&£ EE 5 IR IB R R (B B 1R B B 49545,000/8 7T °

B RUGRNEBERBEREDENBELNFERRMEEER
(EMEERRDCEEERE HEZERERRLER -
BHE 5 RWFIRRE - B ERRE LY B MBI —&
RERZHWERGEE EFRBYSIRENEENERE
Hi - ERERIEEBERIMBEEMIBBITE o

Our procedures included:

° Understanding and evaluating key control over
impairment assessment of trade receivables, and
assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes, susceptibility to management bias
or fraud;

° Evaluating the outcomes of period assessment of
impairment assessment of trade receivables to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;

o Obtaining and examining the assessment report of ECL
of trade receivables prepared by the external valuer
engaged by the Group;

o Assessing the external valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise, and considering its objectivity;

HPNEFERE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B E

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BARETHEEF N EERRETSE

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade receivables
and recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective
and requires significant management judgement, which
increases the risk of error or potential management bias.

FPIC BRIE 5 UG IR Y A] [ U R S B R B S R HER AR
BXIBUEEYFREREELEAHE - WM o0HRHER
SEEEEERINALR -

° Assessing whether trade receivables was appropriately
grouped by the management into categories with
shared credit risk characteristics;

° Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
completeness of the data used by the management
to develop historical loss rates and assessing the
sufficiency, relevance and reliability of that data;

° Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
of trade receivables to supporting documents; and

° Engaging an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment
by the following procedures:

(i) assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model used by the Group;

(i) testing inputs to the model to market data;

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of forward-
looking adjustments to the model; and

(iv)  testing the calculation of the ECL provisions.
. FEERERGERERMNEERBREFEEE S EKGRIA
. MEAHEEES EREEBEEMASBESEER
B WiHEZEEN oM - AR KA S

o HERIAERXMHE S RUGRIA 2 AREH IR |
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EHEET O EERERETEE

Impairment of loan and other receivables
Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has loan and other
receivables with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$77,464,000. Reversal of impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year in
respect of the Group’s loan and other receivables amounted
to approximately HK$461,000.

Loss allowance for loan and other receivables are based
on management’s estimate of the 12 months ECL to be
incurred, which is estimated by taking into account the
credit loss experience, ageing of overdue loan and other
receivables, borrowers’ repayment history and borrowers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions, all of which
involve a significant degree of management judgement. The
management engaged a qualified external valuer to assist in
the assessment.

P e & 5 B E At FE W RORRE
B2 AV BRERMEE23 -

R20235F12A318 - ERBER)EWNE R K E A0 B YRIAD
BRENFERKI77,464,0008 7T - RAFENGFEEBER AR
REM EEERRERREMERFANRESBREDL
461,000/ 7T °

FE W R N B R M R R B IR B R T BN S E A R 1218 A
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& W B R e EL A R MR IRBR B SR E SRR BN AR
BOlOR b B AT IER —REERBHNFERGEE - BT &
S REARENEREHE - BEERESBERINIE
ERTIBBIETE o

Our procedures included:

o Understanding, evaluating the key control over
impairment assessment of loan and other receivables,
which included the management’s identification of
events that triggered the significant increase in credit risk
of loan and other receivables and events of default;

o Assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes, susceptibility to management bias
or fraud;

° Evaluating the outcomes of period assessment of
impairment assessment of loan and other receivables
to assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process;

° Obtaining and examining the assessment report of ECL
of loan and other receivables prepared by the external
valuer engaged by the Group;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B E

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BARETHEEF N EERRETSE

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
balance involved and the significant accounting judgements
and estimates required in assessing the loss allowance for
impairment of loan and other receivables.

BT M ) SRR 2 R REA I AT B MU B R e B At FE WK IR 2
BEBBRERELERGFHE RMA - BRFAERRI

S

o Assessing the external valuer’s qualifications, experience
and expertise, and considering its objectivity;

o Evaluating management’s assessment of whether there
was a significant increase in credit risk on the loan and

other receivables since initial recognition; and

° Engaging an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment by
the following procedures:

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model used by the Group;

(i) testing inputs to the model to market data;

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of forward-looking
adjustments to the model; and

(iv)  testing the calculation of the ECL provisions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BARETHEEF N EERRETSE

Fair value of an investment in convertible loan
Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has an investment in
convertible loan amounted to approximately HK$32,749,000
which is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL").

The management engaged a qualified external valuer to assist
in the determination of the fair value of the convertible loan
based on valuation model.

We focus on this area due to the determination of the
fair value involves significant management estimation, in
particularly, the selection of unobservable inputs. The inherent
risk in relation to the valuation of the fair value of the
convertible loan is considered significant due to subjectivity of
significant assumptions used.

Our procedures included:

° Understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key controls over the valuation
of convertible loan and assessing the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes,
susceptibility to management bias or fraud,;

o Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
management’s valuation expert;

° Obtaining and examining the valuation report prepared
by the external valuer for the fair value determination of
the convertible loan;

° Engaging an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment by
the following procedures:

(i) assessing whether the valuation methodologies
adopted by management were appropriate;

(i)  testing the evidence supporting the unobservable
inputs utilised in the Level 3 fair value measurement;
and

(i)  testing the mathematical accuracy of the calculation.

B2 RS A TSR M EE25 -
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° Evaluating the adequacy of the Level 3 fair value
measurement disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants

28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEBmk

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A318LLFE

2023 2022
2023 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Revenue A 8 423,708 315,701
Cost of sales SHE A (386,020) (277,161)
Gross profit EF 37,688 38,540
Other income EH A 9 7,527 6,204
Other gains and losses, net H IS K 518 R 58 10 (22,867) (5,229)
Distribution costs Pak =[P %N (295) (288)
Reversal of impairment losses on trade and B 5 RUYGRIE Rk B A EUGRIE
other receivables R (B B 1R R ] 1,006 2,773
Administrative expenses TR (28,645) (26,999)
Other operating expenses HEAb AR (2,926) (2,011)
(Loss)/profit from operations B (BB R5F (8,512) 12,990
Finance costs A& AR 11 (828) (901)
(Loss)/profit before tax Bia(EE) &5 F (9,340) 12,089
Income tax expense FriSBi 12 (4,059) (4,785)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EER),SHBF 13 (13,399) 7,304
Attributable to: AT A FELS
Equity shareholders of the Company /NS 3l (13,389) 7313
Non-controlling interests FEPERR i A (10) 9)
(13,399) 7,304
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(EE) BR 17
Basic (HK$ per share) ER(FIAETT) (0.006) 0.003
Diluted (HK$ per share) E(FRET) (0.006) 0.003
JEREREEER A A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e kEMEERKER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31ALFE

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),R1F (13,399) 7,304
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hih2E(BE) WA :
Items that reclassified or may be reclassified to ~ FE#r 7482k A EE T P AEZE 18as VB H -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign HE IR HINE & FTEE RO IE =58
operations (18,291) (58,497)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss [HEZEINECEREENDIEEIBENER
on disposal of foreign operations =% = 4an
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net FREMEEER @ HIBRBIE
of tax (18,291) (58,026)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FALHERERE (31,690) (50,722)
Attributable to: BT AL RS :
Equity shareholders of the Company RN ARERARR (31,682) (50,715)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A (8) (7)
(31,690) (50,722)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e R &

At 31 December 2023
72023F12A31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NRRE 18 227,220 247,877
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 21,263 23,421
Intangible assets mIEE 20 8 13
Other non-current assets HiIEmENEE 1,393 434
Contract assets BHEBE 24 - 31,155
Financial assets at FVTPL NARBEEAEEZEETA
BN eREE 25 32,749 =
Deferred tax assets IR I E &= 30 - 117
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 282,633 303,017
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL AARBEEBEESH:tA
EHETNTREE 25 = 5,681
Inventories PR 22 4,692 5,107
Trade and other receivables H 5 G TE K H A FEW IR 23 244,957 183,482
Current tax assets BNEgFR IR & & 7 71
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & 55 26 237,340 330,894
Total current assets REBEEAE 487,060 525,235
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 e RIE R H Ath FE AT 5RIE 32 12,554 13,758
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 615 1,002
Deferred government grants R IE U 6 B 31 257 264
Current tax liabilities BEARIE & & 12,274 11,811
Total current liabilities BB EAEE 25,700 26,835
Net current assets REEETHE 461,360 498,400
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 743,993 801,417
JERZEREBERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ZEMBMRRE

At 31 December 2023
72023 12A31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 12,262 13,245
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIEEE 30 8,357 8,363
Deferred government grants BTN+ BN 31 4,798 5,202
Total non-current liabilities FRBAEREE 25,417 26,810
NET ASSETS BEE 718,576 774,607
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR#EE
Share capital &N 27 6,085 6,085
Reserves & 29 712,491 768,789

Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the — ZRA Bl REZR AR R fE(HFE 25

Company 718,576 774,874
Non-controlling interests el = (267)
Total equity TESAEEE 718,576 774,607

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and are signed on ~ HEFE/M202453 A28 B LA TIIATREKE

its behalf by: BEHEE
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
BER qHiE

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31ALLFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
ARARRESR

Capital Share-based Non-

Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Statutory  payments  Exchange Retained controlling

Note capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests  Total equity
&% N AER

X RMEE  BEBRE  EARE EERR  NRGERE O ENBR REEA Mt FERER L

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tt TaR  Thr  Tar  ThR e TAR TR TAR TR AR

At1 January 2022 R02F1A18 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 36,207 15,228 9,894 87,986 825,329 = 825,329

Total comprehensive loss for A2 AFELE

the year - - - - - - (58,028) 7313 (50,715) ] (50,722)
Appropriation tostatutory  SEEEEkE

reserve - - - - 2,108 - - (2,108) - - -
Partial disposal of subsidiaries ~ SPAHERAZHE

without loss of control ZHERA 35(0) - - - - - - - 260 260 (260) -
Changes in equity for the year ~ FAERES) - - - - 2,108 - (58,028) 5,465 (50,455) (267) (50,722)
At 31 December 2022 R202E128317 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 38315 15,228 (48,134) 93451 774,874 (267) 774,607
At 1 January 2023 R2023%1818 6,085 601,211 53 68,665 38315 15228 (48,134) 93451 714814 (267) 774,607

Total comprehensive loss for ~~ EAZEHREE

the year - - - - = = (18,293) (13,389) (31,682) (L] (31,690)
Appropration tostatutory  ARBEEEE

reserve - - - - 1883 - - (1,883) - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling ~ WEEHB A

interests of subsidiaries FEERER 35) = = - - - - 4 (219) (275) 205 -
Diidend paid Effa 1 - (3 . - = = = - () TN
Changesin equity for the year ~ FEREE) - (24,341) - - 1843 - (18,289) (15,511) (56,298) 261 (56,031)
At 31 December 2023 2023128318 6,085 576,870 53 68,665 40,158 15,228 (66,423) 77940 718,576 - 718,576

JERZREBER D H
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31ALFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEEBRELEKE
(Loss)/profit before tax AT (Ei8), %A (9,340) 12,089
Adjustments for: FHEIER -
Write off of property, plant and equipment Yz - BB K AEEE 13 40 37
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for FERE/(BERE)
inventories 13 211 (22)
Reversal of allowance for trade and other B 5 e Yk TE K EH Ath E U ER
receivables, net TR fF B3 58 13 (1,006) (2,773)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries T A R /&S 18 35(a) - 4,353
Amortisation of deferred government grants 3R A B 7 B 8 31 (259) (273)
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESE 20 5 73
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE
equipment 18 17,115 17,685
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 19 1,526 1,595
Finance costs ELES VDN 11 828 901
Interest income FESA (6,896) (5,523)
Fair value gain on investments in wealth REBMERZ ANEE
management products Was 10 (135) (42)
Fair value loss on an investment in convertible AERERREZ AREE
loan E5t8 10 22,244 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and EEWE - BB KRB
equipment = 10 (283) =
Operating profit before working capital changes ‘384 & B B) Bl FY AL 2 F) 24,050 28,100
Decrease in inventories FERD 204 905
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 e W p o K Eo Uk
RIFIE AN (34,462) (41,824)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets AWEERD,(EN) 31,155 (4,964)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets HimIEmeh&E(gm)
> (959) 906
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 e 708 K A A
FIRR D (1,204) (1,717)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations TR, (FTA)ES 18,784 (18,594)
Income taxes paid B TS (3,170) (3,099)
Income taxes refunded ERFTSH = 8,303
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEBEHNE (828) (901)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating KETEBAG(FTA)ES
activities SFEE 14,786 (14,291)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBHFEEESHE
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE QR 35(a) = 20,598
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYWE  BEREE 18 (3,983) (163)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEKEE

equipment Fr{S /I8 880 -
Payment for purchases of wealth management  B& 538 B & fu {5 50

products (23,211) (5,674)
Proceeds from disposal of wealth management & 12 81 & B 15 7008

products 28,912 -
Purchase of convertible loan BEAERER 25 (55,265) =
Advance of loan receivables FEUE FREATR (156,241) (116,440)
Repayment of loan receivables RN E TR 132,636 133,906
Interest received BFIE 4,494 5,523
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing WEES(FTR), P38 e

activities pik:c] (71,778) 37,750
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZEHFMERSRE
Dividend paid EATARE 16 (24,341) =
Principal elements of lease payments HENTHAS 35(b) (993) (1,017)
Net cash used in financing activities BE BT AR &R (25,334) (1,017)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRBELEEEACAD),

CASH EQUIVALENTS R EE (82,326) 22,442
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes M R g df) w2 (11,228) (36,488)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MAIENEERESEE

1 JANUARY HH 330,894 344,940
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R12AMENEERESEE

31 DECEMBER HH 237,340 330,894
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRFELEHEEB M

EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIBE SR 237,340 330,894

JERZEREBERAR
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Unit 1903, 19/F, Jubilee Centre, 18 Fenwick Street, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 13 July 2012.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company and its subsidiaries hereinafter
are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), is the immediate and ultimate parent and Mr.
Guo Yumin, a director of the Company, is the ultimate controlling
party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE2023F12A318 IEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction” for the first time in the current year. The
amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption to exclude transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences — e.g. leases.

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A318IEFE

RAVETET RAEER] BB B RS 2R

(a) ERFIREEITEBYBRE

# g

=

REBEERWTHES S ASEHZ
LASET BB ISHRE AR - HR202341
A18sk 2 1% 5th 2 FE 8RR Il A4 -

PR BT A TSR

BB e el EthtER
ESCHES)

FkehER| HE-QHELNAERR

F125R(BETE) EAERETHA

EReEIEER  BEeHEE
S T
EEI(BTE)

BRI XX Frat &S - MK B EREEET
BRNBREENHARERNANEE LB
EFENTBARR R, L% FERE MR
RS BEENBEATE -

FEREBEERE125R(BFTA) [8RE
—REEENEEREBHEBREER
HINEE

AEBDNAFEBRARANEEGHER
F12RUEFTA) [RE-—RHELNEE
RABERBORLERE] - ZFEFIANK
ENHERHRRNEE - HELSEM
ERYHENERZR(PINEE) R 55

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction” (Continued)

Prior to the adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12, the Group
applied the initial recognition exemption under paragraphs 15
and 24 of HKAS 12 for leasing transactions that give rise to
equal and offsetting temporary differences, and therefore no
deferred tax has been recognised for temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at initial
recognition, and also over the lease terms under paragraph
22(c) of HKAS 12.

The Group has applied the transitional provisions under
paragraphs 98K and 98L of Amendments to HKAS 12 to
leasing transactions that occur on or after the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented and also, at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented by:

(i) Recognising a deferred tax asset to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised, and a deferred tax liability for all deductible
and taxable temporary differences associated with
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and

(i) Recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits (or other component of
equity, as appropriate) at that date.

Based on the management’s assessment, there was
immaterial impact on the consolidated statements of financial
position as at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023, because the deferred tax assets and the
deferred tax liabilities recognised as a result of the adoption
of Amendments to HKAS 12 qualify for offset under
paragraph 74 of HKAS 12. The change primarily impacts
disclosures of components of deferred tax assets and liabilities
in Note 30, but does not impact the overall deferred tax
balances presented on the consolidated statement of financial
position as the related deferred tax balances qualify for offset
under HKAS 12.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(b) Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to standards and interpretation that have been issued but not
yet effective:

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

BRANET ] RAMER] BB B R &2 A

(&)

(b) ERITERREM BT ER
RS 2ER
A AR P AT E R E MR
M2 EANETT AR 2R

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RELT B gz &
e HBER

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
HAGFERFEIREUERIN) - AES B AREIIETE

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

BEGIEAE1IRERAN) - MHERENIERBAE

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
ERUBHREENF 165 (ERTAR) —BREARNEERRE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

EREBEESTH (KIS MBBRRNET| — ERAHBERERERIEK
ZEBRER A

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 — Supplier Finance Arrangements
EEGERIE 7R REEMERELEE7HR(ETAR) - HEERELHE

Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability
EEGTERIZE215 (BRI A)- BRZ At

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BBV ISREEF 10N REBSIERFE 285 (BRI A) —REERHEBENRINEE
TEZRNEELEITE

The directors of the Group anticipate that the application
of all amendments to HKFRSs will not have material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

1 January 2024
2024F1 A1H

1 January 2024
2024F1 A1H

1 January 2024
2024F1 H1H

1 January 2024
2024F1 A1H

1 January 2024
20241 H1H

1 January 2025
20251 H1H

To be determined by the

HKICPA

FEEGHMAGETE

AEBEEERGERAMAREMBRESE
AMERT A TGN AR R KRG8 7%
BRELEKX

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, EASHBERER(E

(CONTINUED)

(a) Consolidation (Continued) (a) #EHRE (ME)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve
relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and equity shareholders of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity shareholders of the Company.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investments. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company'’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the entity initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, EASHTBERER(E)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment d) %  BERXE

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:
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ERFHA - =R AMEEKAREE
EFEITE - AEAIERFHNT ¢

Solar power plants 20 years NG LI 20%F
Buildings 20 years gF 20%F
Plant and machinery 5-20 years B R e 25 5-20%F
Office equipment and others 3-5 years PR R E A 354
Motor vehicles 4-5 years b 4-5%
Yacht 5 years PR 54

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that

use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments to be
made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the lease liability.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the individual lessee, which does
not have recent third-party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the
lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a starting
point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets related to interests
in leasehold land where the interest in the land is held
as inventory are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with Note 4(i).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. EARESHHRER(H)

(e) ME(HE)

0]

(ii)

FEBEREEA(E)

BN X 5| BURREER
REE - FIAKERBERGEER
RIHEMNRAENGEE - HE
BN EARER D HAEEEST
ERE - EHER DR EEmES
2y AeEMFEAEEE
EHERGBNLTAEHGER -
SRR E ERRREEF AR
X fMEAEEENREERE
T AIREEARR

o

EREEHT AR AEL OR
5230 MR B0 TR AR (B A A

(MMESEek]) - BRIEREBNHE
EARE - AT HHEREETT
EFATE - ERIEAT - HERE

RS A B IR S TR E
AR RS TR R
FEHHE -

REBEERHBEA

BAEEEREBEAR - HEMEE
Mk RESRHERRENER
REEEE - MREEKEEHE
EARAENET2AERED
REBLAEA - DBRREN
g MRTEULER - ABEES
BRREES -

JERZEREBERAR
2023F 3R

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A3181EFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(f) Intangible assets

(9)

(h)

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL") in accordance with the policy set out in Note
4(x) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

()

()

Properties under development and held for
sale

Properties for sale under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of interest in leasehold land,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other
direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties
held for sale at the then carrying amount.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

- FVTPL, if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in profit
or loss.

Equity securities

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

)

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducing all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax (“VAT") or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
control of the goods is transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer’s specific
location (delivery) and accepted by the customer.
Following delivery and acceptance, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to and accepted by the customer as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is
recognised when control of the properties are
transferred, being when the construction of the
relevant properties has been completed and the
properties have been delivered, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to direct the
use of the property and obtain substantially all of the
remain benefits of the property. Revenue from sale of
properties excludes business tax and other sales related
taxes and is after deduction of any discounts allowed.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
contract liabilities.

Sales of electricity

Revenue from sale of electricity is recognised in the
accounting period when electricity is generated and
supplied to the provincial power grid. Revenue excludes
VAT or other sales taxes.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(v)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

(r) Employee benefits

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group operates various post-employments
schemes, including defined contribution pension plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and vest
fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are members of central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments
(the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The Group is required
to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension schemes
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension schemes is
to meet the required contributions under the schemes.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or, if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and is recognised as an expense.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(u) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of transaction does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A318IEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, EASHTBERER(E)
(CONTINUED)

(u) Taxation (Continued)

(u) BIE(E)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised and a deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends either to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation amount of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land cost, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income tax expense.
LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC enterprise income
tax purposes.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit (“CGU")
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is
being measured.
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4,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(w) Impairment of non-financial assets

(x)

(Continued)

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to profit
or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
and other receivables and contract assets. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contracts assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group's core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there are no
past due amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(y)

(2)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 4, the directors are required to make judgements (other
than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on
the amounts recognised and to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with below).

(@) Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity

Tariff adjustments represent subsidy received and receivable
from the government authorities in respect of the Group's
solar power generation business.

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice announced by the PRC
government in January 2020, the grid companies will
regularly announce a Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidiary
List (the “List”) for solar power plant projects which are
entitled to the tariff adjustments. The state grid companies
will regularly announce the List based on the project type,
time of grid connection and technical level of the solar power
projects and regularly announce the on-grid solar power
plants that are enlisted in the List.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity (Continued)

Tariff adjustments of approximately HK$30,681,000 (2022:
HK$32,460,000) recognised for the year ended 31 December
2023 are included in the sales of electricity as disclosed in
Note 8. The relevant tariff adjustments were recognised
only to the extent that it is highly probable that the tariff
adjustments would not result in a significant revenue reversal
in the future on the basis that all of the Group’s operating
power plants had been qualified for, and had met, all the
requirements and conditions as required based on the
prevailing nationwide government policies on renewable
energy for solar power plants, and taking into account the
legal opinion as advised by the Group’s legal advisor in the
PRC, who considered that all of the Group’s solar power
plants currently in operation had met the requirements and
conditions as stipulated in the New Tariff Notice for the
entitlement of the tariff adjustments when the electricity was
delivered on grid. As at 31 December 2023, all solar power
plants are already enlisted on the List.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(b)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in Note 4(x), ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL
for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2
when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(a)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, income tax of approximately HK$4,059,000 (2022:
HK$4,785,000) was charged to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2023
were HK$227,220,000 (2022: HK$247,877,000) and
HK$21,263,000 (2022: HK$23,421,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(9]

Impairment of trade and other receivables and contract
assets

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets using a provision matrix. The
provision rates are based on ageing of debtors as groupings
of various debtors taking into consideration the Group's
historical default rates and forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.

The Group estimates the amount of impairment loss for
ECL on loan and other receivables based on the duration
of receivables, collection history of individual debtors
and expected future change of credit risks, including the
consideration of factors such as general economy measures
etc.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables and contract assets is HK$244,087,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$11,261,000) (2022:
HK$200,307,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$12,596,000)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d) Fair value of an investment in convertible loan

The investment in convertible loan stated at fair value is
not based on quoted price in an active market, therefore
there is significant measurement uncertainty involved in this
measurement of fair value. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. Management
judgement and estimates are required for the selection of
appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling
techniques.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of convertible
loan is approximately HK$32,749,000 (2022: HK$Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories and net
realisable value of inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/
write-back in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. Allowance for slow-moving inventories amounted
to approximately HK$211,000 (2022: reversal of allowance
for slow-moving inventories amounted to approximately
HK$22,000) was made to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer’s demand and competitor’s actions in response to
severe industry cycles. The Group will reassess the estimates
by the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of inventories
is approximately HK$4,692,000 (2022: HK$5,107,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade and
other receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A318IEFE

EREREE

AEEzEBAZZRSRER - INERR
FERR  RBERBREMNXRER - AEE
ZEREERERASHE ST S 2 HIATRR
1 ISKREAKEMBRREEZBEN
MEERERE -

(@) e

AEEEHEMINERLR - RE/EK
MAEKRS BERBBEEENALRSE
EERNEERGE AEEB AL
BEINER D BERBERIRIINES
HERR - AREERVEREIINERR -
WEENTEREIHEAINE RS o

(b) FEEE

EERBEHFIEEIETER T AN
BEFPAMBETAEEMIIRERBRZEA
o AEBEHBRELEESH(ETERES
FEW IR R Bt e W IR) R A S RA E)
(BRENRITREREBENTR  INER
SRAMESRTA)NEERR - AEE
mRRERREEERAELNEERR
B B FHRBEBREEFTREET
ENRERFRZBRITRESRBEE - &
SERAEABEEERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject
to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due ranging from 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 77.0% (2022:
82.1%) and 99.9% (2022: 99.6%) of the total trade
receivables and contract assets was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's different customer bases.

Based on the track record of regular repayment of receivables
from sales of electricity and that settlement of tariff
adjustment receivables is in accordance with the prevailing
government policies, all trade receivables and contract
assets from sales of electricity, including tariff adjustment
receivables, are expected to be recoverable and the ECL
provision on contract assets is considered to be insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets, as at 31 December 2023:

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

SRR EE ()
(b) &= (E)

EZRWRERANEE (M)
TREEEEASEREREERR KBRS
FEEEMNER - 81E1K2023F12A31
BRESRERFIBRANEE

2023
2023
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
L) B S IR E EiaRAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% THERT FHET
Current (not past due) BNHEA (I £ ER ) 0.02% 166,645 38
More than 3 months HBiE=1E A 97.54% 651 635
167,296 673
2022
20224
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
T EEIE = RERTEE EEREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FAT FAT
Current (not past due) BUER (I #E 8 ER) 0.61% 134,283 823
Less than 1 month DR —{E A 3.11% 13,204 410
147,487 1,233

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

BHERXBESFHERERLRT
B o hFHXARRARN(ELBIREHE
HF W) EEIRREZR - B AR RA
SEHRESUATRRFERNCEIRRZ
BR - MAAGEE -
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R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables during
the year is as follows:

6.

SRR EE ()
(b) &= (E)

S RYHRERESNEE (H)

FREMEZRUFAEER B RNE
T

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

At 1 January »1A18 1,233 420
Impairment losses recognised for the year N £E[E HEsR R A1 678 848
Reversals o (1,223) =
Exchange differences bE W =58 (15) (35)
At 31 December M12A31H 673 1,233

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost include loan and other
receivables.

Deposits and other receivables are generally considered to
have low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during
the period was therefore limited to 12-month expected
losses. These instruments are considered to be low credit risk
when they have a low risk of default and the borrowers have
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

For the loan and interest receivables, the management
considers the credit risk after considering the financial
conditions of the borrowers and concluded that there was
no significant increase in credit risk, and the ECL was limited
to 12-months ECL. Management has applied the expected
credit risk model and estimated the probability weighted
default rate ranging from 1.57% to 35.39% (2022: 36.07 %)
and loss given default rate ranging from 60.90% to 76.80%
(2022: 61.70%) after considering the current economic
environment and the forward-looking economic factors.
Loss allowance of approximately HK$10,563,000 (2022:
HK$11,297,000) was recognised as at 31 December 2023
and reversal of impairment losses amounted to approximately
HK$421,000 (2022: HK$3,650,000) was recognised to profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Movement in the loss allowance for loan and other
receivables during the year is as follows:

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

6. TRIEMREE(E)

(b)

EERKE(E)
REBHEAATECSREE(B)
HERERRFEME @ EEEKE
RANIT B R EEREERBITRARE
BERBITEBAEEN  BBBEESR
B2 ATEHREEEE - KR ERI
LERERAEECERR  ERER
REHREEEBEN KA IERLEN
T1.57%235.39% (20224 : 36.07%)
N i #)1B K R) F60.90% £ 76.80%
(20224 : 61.70%) ° 12023412 A 31
B R B 18 B 154910,563,00078 7T ( 2022
11,297,000 70 ) R R E £2023F
12 A31 B ILFE A 18 = MR B E 18 7
[549421,00078 7T ( 20224 : 3,650,000/
JT) ©

ANGE S E TR H A fE U R E E E B R
E) N

2023 2022

2023 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

At 1 January ®1A1R 11,363 16,142
Impairment losses recognised for the year N4 & HERRL (B & 18 972 29
Reversals ol (1,433) (3,650)
Exchange differences M W 5 (314) (1,158)
At 31 December W12A31H 10,588 11,363

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to debt
investment that is measured at FVTPL. The maximum exposure
at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of
this investment of HK$32,749,000 (2022: HK$5,681,000).

AREBTEBEARAAEBEFEAHE
ATAEHBRITENERREEHEER
B o KRS BARERNRARR AR
E1E32,749,00078 TR AN & (20224 -
5,681,000/ 7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31B8IL5E

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. TREREEE)

(c) Liquidity risk () RBELEAR

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and AEE ZBER AT R B A RIEE 27
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains PESHFR  KAMBEREAEELEFTEH
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in ReFEHENENERARRRANREE
the short and longer term. EFEK o
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BEAREFNTEEREBEZ SRS
flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as RERELIEASITAT
follows:

Less than Between Between
1 year or 1and 2and Over
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total

PME

REER 15526 2FE5F SENUE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TBT TR L THBT

At31December 2023 20235128318
Trade and other payables & 5 (5 008 K H th fE {4 208 12,554 - = = 12,554
Lease liabilities HERE 1,395 1,260 3,650 15,502 21,807

At 31 December 2022 72022124318

Trade and other payables & 5 {08 K E fth FE (508 13,758 = = = 13,758

Lease liabilities HERE 1,846 1,421 3,738 17,211 24,216
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FI=m=px

The Group’s investment in convertible loan and loan AEBE R TR ERIEE KW E IR E

receivables bear interest at fixed interest rate and therefore EMEGTE Bt - AXAABEFRX

are subject to fair value interest rate risks. [BL B ARR

The Group's bank deposits bear interest at variable rates that REBERRITIFRIEREERRITIRE b

vary with the then prevailing market condition. BVEBF RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31
December 2023

TREE

Financial assets:
Financial assets at FVTPL

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

SHEKREE(E)
(e) 2023F12A31BMERMIEDE

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TAT

WA R BEHE A EBBEHA

EHERNERMEE 32,749 5,681
Financial assets measured at amortised cost LA SER AT ENERMEE 481,427 500,046
Financial liabilities: SHMEE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DA SER AT EM S RIB & 12,554 13,758
Lease liabilities HEAE 12,877 14,247
(f) Fair values ) 2REE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and RGBSR RFIRE 2 RSB 2R E
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement ENcHBEZERERESBZARE
of financial position approximate their respective fair values. BEEE °
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AAREETE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

RABEENS2EEZRANGERRESF
RGPHEEERRNABEEBERNNE
& TXEEEARABEERAENLE
B - AT EAABENMKEN AR ABRLL
DR={ARH :

E-EBRBAER: AEEURFERESZ
HREESXAERERT
15 LY RE CRIEHARE) -
F_ERBAE: FERMEENHREN
o BERBBEEERRA
BEABRZBAE -
F-ERBAE: EEARENTUERSH
AE -

AEENBRAERBE R LI ARG
EENEA=EARREARELER

JERZEREBERAR
2023F F 2R

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31B8IL5E
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AnEETEGE
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (a) M2023F12831H A REBEEER
31 December 2023: NERBEWNT :
Fair value measurements using: Total
AAEEFEFRER &F
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2023
it $—ER E-EBR EZER 2023%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET THT TET
Recurring fair value TBREEANERE:
measurements:
Financial assets: SREE !
Financial assets at FVTPL NAAEEFEAEZ ST AN
ERfemEE
~ Unlisted equity securities — 3k R A ES - - - -
— Convertible loan — AR - - 32,749 32,749
- - 32,749 32,749
Fair value measurements using: Total
AREEFEFAFER Bt
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
fiit EF-ER EZER E=ER 20226
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
Recurring fair value REMDNAEETE:
measurements:
Financial assets: SREE !
Financial assets at FVTPL NAAEEFEEEZSHT AN
ERfeRERE
- Unlisted equity securities — JEEHBRARES - _ _ _
— Wealth management product — BHER - 5,631 = 5,681
- 5,681 - 5,681
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, there REZE2022F K%2023F12A31H EF
were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3. B -F—Ef FZERARE=ZEHZ

I S o
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7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair

(9)

value based on Level 3:

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

D RBEEFTEGE)
(b) REF=BREAAEBETEZ

BEEYK

Financial assets at FVTPL
DAREEFEAEEEEHFA

EHBEENSREE

2023 2022

20235 20224

Description HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHTT

At 1 January R1H1H - -

Addition HE 55,265 -
Total unrealised fair value losses R ERZ KSR AREE

recognised in profit or loss “aEE (22,244) =

Exchange differences b 5 =58 (272) -

At 31 December M®12A31H8 32,749 -

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are
presented in other gains and losses, net in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Disclosure of valuation process used by

the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31
December 2022 and 2023:

The Group’s financial manager is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial manager reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial manager and the Board of Directors at
least twice a year.

(9]

RIBaRER R MR B BR BN T A ES
RZHEMYERERFEZT o

AEBEN2022F K% 2023F12 8
BMMBETAAEBEFEMERAN
HERF  HERMTR@AARE
WEWT :

REBNH IR BETHERERE
KWEERBEAABEFNE  BERE
ZERAREENE  UBLEEERA
EEgERASAABEFNE - UBL
BREEEFFEOETRAERMER
Fr AR EE W ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZ=2023F 128318 HFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. QREBEEFEGE)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by () AEBER2022FK%2023F12A4
the Group and valuation techniques and BM1AETAARBEETFEMERAN
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31 HERF  HERTREAZE
December 2022 and 2023: (Continued) WEMT (&)

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally REZERAAEBEFEMS  ~A5E
engage external valuation experts with the recognised —MGEEE A HRR A X AR SR
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform BREVINEB L (ERD o

the valuations.

Level 3 fair value measurements

EZERAABENE Significant Sensitivity/relationship of Fair value

Description Valuation technique unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value MEE
FUBRRAEHALER 223 2022

il BRI EXTABREAR ZERE/BE ABE 00
HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT TATL

Convertible loan Binomial option pricing model Discount rate at 22.79% Increase in discount rate would result in 32,749 -
decrease in fair value of the convertible
loan, and vice versa

AEREH A HEEEES BER%22.79% HREENEEHTBRENI AR
B - K2

Level 2 fair value measurements Fair value
E-EANEERE MMEE
Description Valuation technique 2023 2022
il fhfEbt W% wNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL
Wealth management ~ Income approach Cash value quoted by the bank based on the principal amount and - 5,681
product expected return rates at inception
BHER WAz RTREM A ERRRORERAR L EE
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8.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

major products or service line for the year is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15

Disaggregated by major products or
service lines

BERUBRERUF1SHEER
REEFEHNEA

BEBEMIBBEAD

L ON e &
LON i)

REZERSREESNAEERFAY
A DT ¢

(a)

2023
PIPEES

HK$'000

FET

2022
20224
HK$'000

TR

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

Sales of sub-processing cigarette films S5 M T & EEE 3,272 1% 3,728 1%
Sales of semi-conductors HELER 366,970 86% 255,344 80%
Properties development and related ~ ¥)3 %R R ER IR
services 430 1% 415 1%
Generation of photovoltaic power FIRES 53,036 12% 56,214 18%
Total At 423,708 100% 315,701 100%
JEREREEER A A

2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31B8IL5E
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARZH&E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) WA#z (&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and AEBER T EEE R R B BE R
services over time and at a point in time in the following I ER I IR BB e e o I AR TS EE AR M

major product lines and geographical regions:

For the year ended Sales of sub-processing Properties development and  Generation of photovoltaic

31 December digarette films Sales of semi-conductors related services power
ERNANALER HENTEESR HETER NEERRABER HEE
03 200 03 00 03 00 03 0 03
038 W05 2038 JLNES WBE W05 WBE W% W38
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKY000  HKS'000  HKSOO0  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tn Than TR AT Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin

Primary geographical TEUETS

markets
Hong Kong = - - 357,588 240219 - - - - 357,588 240219
Mainland China hEm 3 3728 938 15,125 830 415 53,036 5,214 06,120 75482
Total e 3 3728 366,970 255344 830 415 53,036 56,214 423,108 315,701
Timing of revenue BRI

recognition
Poducts translerred atapont  ERRE-BREEH

in time 3m 3728 366,970 255,344 830 415 - - 370,672 159,487
Products and senices ERRERERREY

fransferred over time - - - - - - 53,036 56,214 53,036 56,214
Total e 3 3728 366,970 255,344 830 415 53,036 56,214 423,108 315,701
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group has four operating segments as follows:

o Sales of sub-processing cigarette films: this segment
engages in trading of sub-processing cigarette films;

o Sales of semi-conductors: this segment engages in
trading of semi-conductors;

o Properties development and related services: this
segment engages in development and sales of
properties and providing property management
services; and

o Generation of photovoltaic power: this segment
engages in generating and sales of electricity.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires different
technology and marketing strategies.

Segment profits or losses do not include unallocated
head office and corporate expenses, fair value loss on an
investment in convertible loan and impairment of unallocated
loan receivable. Segment assets do not include convertible
loan, unallocated head office and corporate assets. Segment
liabilities do not include unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A318IEFE

WA R EP#E ()

7 BB
REBNPEEE DT -

o  HENMTHEER: OB EEMN
TRIENTERRBE :

o HHEFER: WONBEEVER:

o MEBRIEMERT WO RER
NHEME MR EE B R
)4

. KIREE : WO MEHES -

REE B2 Al E 0 AR AR A R EE fn MR
BEORBEEBEN - HRSBREHAH
ZEAM R EHRE AR - MAEREERE
DHER °

2 b M HER N BRI AR I AR A F
i TEREFIREN A EERSE
ERADEERETRE - DHEETE
AT ER - RAE S KR D B AR
MRAREE - nHMAEBIEEARANRE
BMARAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31B8IL5E
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARDEHE(H)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PEBFHE(E)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) 2PEE - BEERERE
Information about operating segment profit or loss, BHRENEER  AERAEZ
assets and liabilities: BRI

Sales of sub-processing Properties development and Generation of photovoltaic
(igarette films Sales of semi-conductors related services power Total

BENTEEEE BEvER WEREREABRE HhyE fit
03 2022 03 2022 023 2022 2023 2022 03 2022
A% W00 W03E WE WBE N0E ABE 0% AnBE W0
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK/$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
THT AT TEn BT T TEm THn AT TER
Year ended 31 December HENR3IAILEE
Revente fom external customers—— RESMIREMA 30 378 | 36910 25534 30 M5 B30 214 A8 315701

Reportable segment gross (loss) W%ﬁ‘éﬁ(ﬁi)/ %

profit (500) (495 352 273 U6 0 A %180 - 37688 38540

Reportable segment (loss)/profit  FHERA L5t (&

before tax £)/%A G806 B ) M8 631 B B REM 2883
Inerestincome on bank deposits S/ TRIEMA 358 662 7 El 769 % 2 B m
Interest expense flaFR - - - - - - 802 82 802 862
Depreciaion and amortisaton TENEH 1128 1178 39 400 4 4 16466 1708 17991 18610

Other material non-cash fems; EfBRPIEER

(Reversal of mpaiment losses)~~~ EBRUGTERA
impaimment losses on trade and Yse(REEE

otfer receables &)/ 5EsE 6 = (167) 768 () 6o (456) 0 LB om
s 3t 31 December R12A31H
Reportable seqment assets TERAEE w167 9537 - T616 6293 | 2TAB 21093 39 4438 I5B0 781931

Additions to non-current ERERBANEEN
segment assets during the RE
year - - 1131 3 -

283 160 3,960 163
Reportable segment liabilties ~ THEABEE 0751 230 220 1249 5089 5677 19354 0051 | 47419 49307
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8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(Loss)/profit

Reportable segment profit before tax

Fair value loss on an investment in
convertible loan

Impairment of unallocated loan receivable

Unallocated head office and corporate
expenses

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

8. WARZH®E(HE)

(b) 2#FHE (&)
Reconciliations of segment profit or loss: (i) PWEFREGEHER

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT T
(E518), 5 A

A] FR RS #BE AT A 22,814 28,853

AERERRENAREE
&8 (22,244) =
R B EWE FRE (332) =

AN BTN AFX
(9,578) (16,764)

Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax

fREBA(BE), J8r (9.340) 12,089

Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities:

Assets

Total assets of reportable segments
Convertible loan

Unallocated head office and corporate

(i) oMEERBEHR

2023 2022
202345 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T

BE
AR EPEELRE 715,730 787,931
AR E R 32,749 =

ANOEEE AR EE

assets 21,214 40,321
Consolidated total assets A BEARE 769,693 828,252
Liabilities 8f&

Total liabilities of reportable segments AR B ERE 47,419 49,307
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBHLF AT EE

liabilities 3,698 4,338

Consolidated total liabilities LeEaEeEE 51,117 53,645
JERZEREBERAR

2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31B8IL5E
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARZH&E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) RS (E)
(iv) Geographic information (iv) HEZER
No geographic information is presented as the revenue, BARAEEHRA - HEEERD
contribution to operating results, assets and liabilities BB - EERAEHBEBREEZR
of the Group are attributable to operating activities FRE(BIERS)ETRERNLE
which are carried out or originated principally in the BB AR 2R ER o

PRC including Hong Kong.

(v) Revenue from major customers (v) REFEEFEFHRWRA
Revenue from major customers who have individually fE R B AL B B RUE10%30A FHY
contributed to 10% or more of the total revenue of the FERFHIMAFEEZNT :

Group are disclosed as follows:

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Segment of sales of semi-conductors HEERE S
Customer A REH 356,620 240,219
Segment of generation of photovoltaic FIREB DAL
power
Customer B BEZ 53,036 56,214

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

OTHER INCOME 9. HfbWA
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Government grants (Note) B B (BT ) 50 235
Amortisation of deferred government grants IR AT TR 7 Bh 8 (B 5E31)

(Note 31) 259 273
Interest income on bank deposits RITE T S WA 1,746 1,979
Loan interest income BERAEHA 5,150 3,544
Rental income HBWA 190 71
Sundry income HMETFI A 132 102

7,527 6,204

Note: Government grants of approximately HK$50,000 (2022: HK$19,000) MIEE - BN IBNAI50,0007 7T (20224 < 19,0007 7T )
mainly related to the subsidy received from the PRC local government FTEEWARKEXF B BT BT HE
authority for the achievements of the Group. During the year ended W 2 #Bh - B ZE2022F 12 A31HIEFE -
31 December 2022, the Group recognised government grants of 755 [ R B A B AR I T IR BUR AR R O AR
HK$216,000 in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies relating to BT 2178 B8 K COVID- 1948 78 1l Al BR T 4 BD
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong Special 216,000/ 7T - REEBER20226F12A31BA]
Administrative Region Government. The Group had complied all & FTa M g

attached conditions before 31 December 2022.

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31B8IL5E
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. Hftzihzs R 1858
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE MEERE
equipment 283 —
Write off of property, plant and equipment ME - BE NS (40) (37)
Write back of trade payables B 5 FE 5 IEME = 490
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35(a)) HEMTE A AEE (M sE35(@a)) - (4,353)
Net foreign exchange losses B 5, s 18 F 2R (1,001) (1,371)
Fair value gain on investments in wealth KREBMERHN A EERKE
management products 135 42
Fair value loss on an investment in convertible AERERIREN DA EEEER
loan (22,244) =
(22,867) (5,229)
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BERE

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 19) HEaBENF EFZ(KEE19) 828 901

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Current tax — PRC corporate income tax

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

12. FBEH<H

BRMBEHNIEEARERIT

BPEAR IR — P B R AIS TR

2023
20234

2022
20224
HK$'000
FBT

HK$000
FERT

Provision for the year REZHEE 3,070 3,548
Underprovision in prior years RBTFEREDTE 880 274
3,950 3,822

Deferred tax (Note 30) JRAEFIE (M5E30) 109 963
4,059 4,785

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
these jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit derived in Hong Kong during
the year (2022: Nil).

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law") which became effective on
1 January 2008 and the PRC's statutory Corporate Income
Tax rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to advanced
technology enterprises established in the PRC, Xuzhou
Sheentai New Energy Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“XZNE")
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group) is subject
to PRC corporate income tax at a preferential tax rate of 15%
(2022: 15%) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

0)

(ii)

(iii)

REFASES M RBE R RS RAM
MBI - NEBEARZE BAER BN
ERMAER -

A4 90 R BE B - A E
[ 7K 47 [ 1A 5% o 48 7 R B i (2022
F:%)o

M2007F3A16H @ F+EEZ2BARR
RAEERARNEESHBEKPEARL
MEIRZEMERE) ([FIBUE]) - 722008
FIATBER  FEDAEREMERE
525% °

R E A RATE R B S M s i R i e 2 /9
EEER  mMNERFEERESHRA
AI([HRMFTEER ] AEEHNEEEEN
BAR)AREE2023F12 8318 LEE
IREEFIR15% (20224 : 15%) 84+
B {EEFTSHL o

JERZEREBERAR
2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(Continued)

Entities engaged in qualified power generating projects, are
eligible for a corporate income tax exemption for the first year
to the third year, and a 50% reduction for the fourth year to
the sixth year starting from the year in which the entities first
generate operating income (the “3+3 tax holiday”). XZNE
was entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject to withholding
tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the tax
arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the “beneficial
owner” and holds a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.
The withholding tax rate applicable to the Group is 5%.

The State Administration of Taxation of the PRC announced
in March 2021 that enterprises engaging in research and
development activities would entitle to claim 175% of
their research and development expenses so incurred as
tax deductible expenses when determining their assessable
profits (“Super Deduction”) until December 2023. The State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC further announced
in September 2022 and March 2023 to increase the Super
Deduction rate to 200% of their research and development
expenses from 1 October 2022 to 31 December 2022 and
from 1 January 2023 onwards. The Group has made its
best estimate for the Super Deduction to be claimed for the
Group's entities in ascertaining their assessable profits during
the year.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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12. FREHH ()

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

REEERERELRENECETARS
REEREWANFEREEFE -EE=F
ERERESELEMEH  YRFEDNE
ENFEANRR50%H) S 3+3
HEERH ) « RINFTEERZF3+3HH
RRf o

RIFFBOE R E B AR - R IF20084F
101 B AR RER A i M) 28 755 765 16 91 X 22 B
BR BAFFEEREEREERK
TEEREENREARI0%MAIEN
B oo RBEPEAMEAFTEFRTRRZ
BRI 2B RARBES - R E D
ENEaBEA A L FFE25% A LY
BN ERBAVNBERAZERHE
HHE5% - BRARAEENEINRES
5% °

BERHEEDN2021E3 85 @ 1EEH
BB E R BR F R Al iR
R B A Y AT HUR R T8 ) <2 R s A 2
FZE175% ([FBEEHIRR]) - EZE20234F
1281 - AR BBRENR2022F98 &
2023F3RE—FEM - DRIE20225F
10818 %E2022412 31 BIA K& 202341
R18# - iSRS BENRL RS
F200% - AEBERAEEEREARTE
HENERT AR ATRE 2 B ENRE
e EME o



12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31B1L5FE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FRSBIZH (&)
The reconciliation between income tax expense and product of FT{S %t ERFR AT (B 1) i 1) 3 LA FR Bt =6
(loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as ZAERERRAT ¢
follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
(Loss)/profit before tax AT (EE),/#HA) (9,340) 12,089
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before tax, R R AR RS R E A
calculated at the rates applicable in the HERAERHR(EE) FFE
jurisdictions concerned HEDIE (1,424) 4,398
Tax effect of the preferential tax rates BEBERNFIETE (2,081) (2,167)
Additional deductible allowance for research ]38 ANF0E 2 T3S & B
and development expenses (600) (586)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR HEFIEE 2 6,204 2,587
PRC dividend withholding tax B S TEHTE = 995
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFERR R U A BT e o 22 (230) (780)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNBIEBENRIELE 1,698 932
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not A S Al AR FER R I E R
previously recognised Bsh-Z (644) (698)
Underprovision in prior years RBAFERETR 880 274
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AR LR EENRIETE
differences 256 (170)
Income tax expense FTSfiz 4,059 4,785
The weighted average applicable tax rate is 15.2% (2022: 36.4%). R E B R KR B 152% (2022 F ¢
The decrease is caused by the effect of change in the profitability of 36.4%) c % NETVHARASEEZ A LB ER
the Group's subsidiaries in respective jurisdictions. RIKT B AR BF e N IRE BRI EFTE -
JEREREEER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13.

The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in

cost of sales)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit service
— Non-audit services
Cost of inventories sold
Expenses relating to short-term lease

Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for inventories

(included in cost of inventories sold)
Reversal of allowance for trade and other
receivables, net
Research and development expenditure
Write off of property, plant and equipment
Staff costs

FR(BE)ER

kR (GEA) TR & HR

18),mAMIAT

2023
20234

HK$"000
Tz

B EEHHE G AHERE)

5
M - BERRETES 17,115
FREEENE 1,526
HEWE - BFE R ERE

(283)
ZERET BN <

- RS 960

- AR 18
BEFERA 365,264
HOHHESHENER 1,615
GERE(BEER)GTARE

FEKA) 211
B 5 FEMGRIE I H fth B U R T #%

EREFEE (1,006)
HEFEx 2,400
Y - BRE KRR A 40
BTRA 12,614

F REBFAR(E

2022
20224
HK$'000
FBT

73
17,685
1,595

950

50
254,766
1,372

(22)

(2,773)
2,418
37
12,093

Cost of sales includes the following which are included in the

respective amounts disclosed separately above:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Expenses relating to short-term lease
Staff costs

YE - BERRETE
EREEENE
HISHHERHNER
BTARA

HERABENATRR(EDFFALXEBRE

BINBRE S T

2023
2023F

HK$'000
TR

16,108
662
134
825

2022
20224
HK$'000
FBT

16,840
697
148

1,203
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

14. EERABAX

2023 2022

20234F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT &

Salaries, bonuses and allowances He - 81E RoERL 11,582 10,926
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFT BRI R 1,032 1,167
12,614 12,093

(a)

(b)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
plans which are available for eligible employees in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
There were also no forfeited contributions available as at 31
December 2022 and 2023 under the PRC Retirement Scheme
and MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce
the contribution payable in future years.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included two (2022: two) directors, whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 15(a). The
emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three) individuals
are set out below:

(a) EHE - EFEMRTE

AEERTEERESNAERER AT
HFRIKFT B -

REE2022F %2023 12318 1L
B AEBRFERKGE KRB ET
B ARAT ] 152 IR SR AT R AN R B A AR
DIRBEFOKTE o 720224 %2023 12
A318 @ RPBRKRT 8 RaEesrE
TV (E{R] 4R U R AT (AN 52 B A AR
DR FHER R -

(b) EUBEESMEAL

REEAFE AR ATEIE2M
(20225 : 2f7)EE - HBSERMEE
15@) FT 5 2 4T AR BR o 88~ 362(2022
F 3 mEee AT ZMEEHNIT

2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&xT T
Salaries, bonuses and allowances He - 888 NRoEAL 1,968 2,035
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  EURIEFIEHEIR 4% 52 54
2,020 2,089
JERZEREBERAR

2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BZE2023F 128310 L5 E
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14. EEEFFEX(E)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) BfuEEMEAL(E)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B eEIA T2 EEEA ¢

Number of individuals

A
2023
20234
HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T L2 1,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7C21,500,00058 7T 1 1
3 3
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15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F12A31BILFE

15. EERAINER
() ESHE
EEZEEMLHIIMT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

PREALERES(FRATLAENRL A NEXNTENE

Employer's
contribution to
Discretionary a retirement
Fees Salaries bonus  benefit scheme Total
EEREMER
he ¢ Kt RIS ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr TiEn Tén ThR TiEn
Executive directors YiTES
Guo Yumin BER - 1425 300 17 178
Xia Yu ER - 300 250 15 565
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES
Fan Qing il 120 - - - 120
Dai Tin Yau N 120 - - - 120
Chan Yin Lam BRER 120 - - - 120
Total for 2023 BESH 360 1,725 550 2 2,667
JEREREEER A A

2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

15. EERARER(E)

(a)

EEME (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the
Company o its subsidiary undertaking

FREALERES(TRATLARENEL LA NEXNIERNE

Fees

e
HK$000

o o
R

Salaries

HK§'000
a7

Employer's

contribution to

Discretionary a retirement
bonus benefit scheme Total

B s
HK$'000 HK$'000
47 T#7

Executive directors YTES
Guo Yumin JER - 300 300 15 615
Xia Yu BR = 300 300 15 615
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Fan Qing Bl 120 - - - 120
DaiTin Yau A 120 - - - 120
Chan Yin Lam RER 120 - - - 120
Total for 2022 W0FRs 360 600 600 30 1,590
(b) Directors’ termination benefits (b) EE=EEBER
None of the directors of the Company received any HZE2023F12A31BLEFE  ARRE
termination benefits during the year ended 31 December S ENEUE A BERAE R (20224 : &) -
2023 (2022: Nil).
() Consideration provided to third parties for () MRUESHEBEMEE=FRM

making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
did not pay considerations to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2022: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
bodies corporate controlled by and entities
connected with such directors

The information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
entered into by the Company or subsidiary undertaking of
the Company in favour of directors is as follows:

Outstanding

amount

at the

Total beginning

Name of director amount of the year
£4

EZ2R ok KEESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000

Thr T

Asat 31 December 2023 A2023%12A31H

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

15. EERARER(E)

(d)

Outstanding
amount

at the end
of the year
X
AEEEH
HK$'000
Thn

FRANES  ©HEREZZHIN
TEREAESHEENERRSE S
AMER - EERREMRZH
BRAAASAATHBATAEERE
BATTIAER - AERRAMR S
AR -

Maximum

outstanding Amount  Provision for
amount during due but doubtful
the year not paid debts made

FARE Eil)
FEEEE  EAXNEE RiEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T AT

Mr. Guo Yumin SERELE 973 238 973 1,627 = =

As at 31 December 2022 202212 F318

Mr. Guo Yumin IERES 238 07 238 07 = =
Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EENXRE  ZHREHNZEK

arrangements and contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2022: Nil).

e

BARA SRR EISWEE N - NF
Rk F AR BRI ST E T MR
RAIEIMMARREE R EREATEEK
MEESEARRZEARS TR
EH#I(20226  4E) o

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

P AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

16.

17.

DIVIDEND

A final dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share, totalling
approximately HK$24,341,000, in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022 was approved at the Annual General Meeting
held on 31 May 2023. The final dividend was distributed out of the
Company'’s share premium and paid in cash during the year ended
31 December 2023.

No dividend was proposed by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss (2022: earnings) per
share is based on the loss (2022: profit) for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$13,389,000 (2022:
HK$7,313,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of approximately 2,434,136,000 (2022: 2,434,136,000).

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The computation of diluted loss (2022: earnings) per share did not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
as the exercise price of those share options were higher than the
average market price for shares for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022. Diluted loss (2022: earnings) per share was the
same as the basic loss (2022: earnings) per share for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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16.

17.

RE

B E2022F12 A3 1B L FE 2 RBBR B AT
B RA%1 .08l - AB{E#24,341,00087C © B
M2023F5 A31BET 7 RERBF RS LEH
o REIRERARARBRMEEFR DK - W
REZE2023F12 A31 B ILFEARES T -

REZE2023F12A31BILEE - NAAHE
EERE - AR B RS AR E TR

=

75N

ZR(EE) EF
BREA(EHR) B

BREAREERE(20224F « BF) HERK
NEHEB ANERFEAEE(2022F &5 F)) 4
13,389,000/ 70 (20224F : 7,313,000/ 70 ) &2 &
A hNE 15 81 492,434,136,0000% (20224 :
2,434,136,0000%)5t& -

BREE(EE)BF
HRARBIRITEBRENTEESNEZR
2023F K 2022412 A31 B I FE R GH FHE ™
8 @ WEREEEIE(2022F « BF)Z5ET
EERZSERIEREITE - 81220235 %2022
F12A31BILFE - GREEEE(20225F -
BF) BEREARETE(20224F : BF)IER -



18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

Solar power
plants

ARHRER
HKS 000
Thn

Buildings
)
HK$ 000
ThTL

18. M% - MEKRE

Plant and
machinery
HERER

HK$000

Tén

]iilC]
equipment
and others

HORBRAN
HK§'000
kT

Motor
vehicles
i
HK'000

8

Yacht
it
HK$ 000
7

Total
A
=L}

HK§'000
Thn

Cost A
At 1 January 2022 RNONE1R1R 358562 053 42108 3782 53% 35,7% 468,177
Additions %g - - - 163 - - 163
Wite off i = (1) = ) = = (44
Disposal of subsidaries HENBAT - = (23669) (556) = - (24209
Exchange differences EiEE (28229) (1,746) (1998) (143) (34) - (32439)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 1202512831 BRABE1A1A 330334 20750 16,441 3239 5070 35,798 411,632
Additons -y 1,565 - - 66 235 - 3983
Disposals il - - - - (967) = (%7)
Wite of it = - - (190) (127 - (1,767
Bichange diffrences EXER 935) (577) (672 (3) (108 - (10,750)
At31 December 2003 HBENA3NA M5 0173 15,769 276 5070 3798 m
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ ZitHFERBE
At1 January 2022 MONEIA1A (90.950) ()] (41639) (3.740) (3805 (35,708) (180,588)
Charge for he year KEfE (16,207) (930) (46) (65) (3%) () (17,685)
Wrte off i - - - 7 - - ]
Disposal o subsidiaries EREAT - - B 58 - - 24155
Bichange diffrences EXZE 7,665 376 1946 157 hi)] - 10,3%
M3 December 002 and 1 ey 03— 021231 BRI A1 (99490 (5301 (16111 B13) B%9) (35749 (163759
Charge forthe year KEfE (15489) (882) 24 (1) (563) ) (17119
Disposdls -3 - - - - 30 - Efl)]
Wite off i - - - 485 1242 - 1727
Bxchange differences EXER 2941 148 662 3 68 = 3862
At 31 December 2003 YVECTE LT (112039) (603 (15473 10) (47 (3579 (174911)
Carrying amount B
At 31 December 2023 1203%12831H 210506 14138 29 I 219 8 2120
At 31 December 2022 H2022%128318 80840 15,449 30 126 1,081 49 27877
JEREREEER A A

2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

19. FRHEEE

Leasehold

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Leased

180

lands

HE L
HK$°000

TR

properties
HEW=
HK$°000
THETT

Total

A
(=)

HK$'000
TAT

At 1 January 2022 1202291 A1H 25,598 216 25,814
Additions g - 1,187 1,187

Depreciation e (983) (612) (1,595)
Exchange differences PEHZE%R (1,985) = (1,985)
At 31 December 2022 72022912 H31H 22,630 791 23,421

Depreciation e (933) (593) (1,526)
Exchange differences b X ER (632) - (632)
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12 A31H 21,065 198 21,263

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$12,877,000 (2022:
HK$14,247,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$11,328,000 (2022: HK$12,921,000) as at 31 December 2023.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.

#2023F 12 A31H - BE#R412,877,0007%8
7E(20224F : 14,247,000/ T ) M E A B R
11,328,000/ 7t(2022 4F : 12,921,0005 7T )
REREREESE -BREEARMBEHEEE
RREREZ SN - THE R T HE I H A2
4 o

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHT

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets FREEENITEERR 1,526 1,595
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in ~ FAE A BB H (GTAREK

finance costs) ) 828 901
Expenses relating to short-term lease (included — EfEHAFAE AN EF (Gt ANE

in cost of sales and administrative expenses) PRARATE ) 1,615 1,372

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note 35(c).

For both years, the Group leases various lands and offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms of
2 years to 50 years (2022: 2 years to 50 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

BEFR R ERAFIEHNIESS() °

MEHRE - ARERESE L RRAEIAE
TRE - HEAXNNEERR R22509 (2022
F 1 2E50%F) - HERKEREERIE R HE
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7 A AH BN ST N AT U R AR B - 3R
BRMTERLETE QKR RFIMITOHR



20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BEEE

Software

LGS

HK$'000

TET

Cost %S

At 1 January 2022 M202241H1H 12,823
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (10,757)
Exchange differences I 5 =58 (564)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 202212 A31H K%2023F1A1H 1,502
Exchange differences I 5 =58 (42)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12H31H 1,460
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses Rt R REEE

At 1 January 2022 2022F1 H1H (12,215)
Amortisation for the year AN EHH (73)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 10,256
Exchange differences b =58 543
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 72022412 A31H KX2023F181H (1,489)
Amortisation for the year PGSR s (5)
Exchange differences I 5 =5 42
At 31 December 2023 72023412 A318 (1,452)
Carrying amount BREE

At 31 December 2023 72023412 A318 8
At 31 December 2022 2022912 831H 13

The average remaining amortisation period of the software is 1.9

years (2022: 2.7 years).

F) -

PR GBI A1.9F(2022F : 2.7

JERZEREBERAR
2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F12A31BILFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 are

as follows:

Name of company

hAtR

Directly held
Sheen Tai Energy Investment Ltd. STEL")

Sheen Tai International Investment Ltd. (“STIL")

Sheen China Group Holdings Inc.("SCGHI")

Sheen Tai Clouc! Network Limited (" STCNL")

(ity Cloud Network (Ching) Sci. & Tech. Limited
("CaNC")

182
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HiiE
ez EREBRAA(STEL))

=

ERERRARRAASTIL))

=

JEEEBERERAF(SCH])

JBZZEABRAF(STONL])

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Principal country of operation/

Country of incorporation/Kind of

legal entity

TREEAT HfNIRS /iR

RRER

Hong Kong/BVILimited liabilty
company

B/ RBAARNE/BRAT

Hong Kong/BVILimited fiabity
company

B/ RBERRNE/BRAT

Hong Kong/BVILimited libilty
company

B/ RBERREE/ARAT

Hong Kong/BVilimited liablty
company

B/ RBERRNE/ARAT

Hong Kong/BVilLimited liabiity
company

B/ RBERRNE/ARAT

21. RMIBATNKRE
720224 % 2023412 H31 HRIMI B A BB 0

T

Particular of issued share capital

BRfiRARR

100 ordinary shares of US$1 each
100REREEIETHEER

100 ordinary shares of US$1
each and 1 ordinary share of
520,000,000 each
100EERER ETHEERRIR
SREED 0000ETER
i

10 ordinary shares of US$1 each

10RBRARIETHERR

100 ordinary shares of US$1 each
100EEREE £ EER

46 ordinary shares of US§ 1
LoRERARRTHE R

Group's effective interest

AR

03
0038

100%

100%

100%

100%
(Note 35(e))
(Ki35(e))

100%

Rl

100%

100%

100%

60%
(Note 35/d)
(350)

100%

Principal activities

Investment holding

R

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Inactive

B2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R HRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12831HIEFE
21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21. RMIBATMNIKRE (&)

Principal country of operation/

Country of incorporation/Kind of

Name of company legal entity Particular of issued share capital Group's effective interest Principal activities
TEEEAR/dMALAR/ tE
ARER RiEER BRRAHE FEENERAR TERE
03 0
ABE NW0E
Indirectly held BkEE
Century Leader Science and Technology (Shenzhen) — BRAFHR(RA)EREMEAT  The PRCThe PRCMholl foregn-  Registered captal of HK$23, 180,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co, Ld. ("CLST") owned entty SEER3 180 00057 and trading of semi-
wE/RE/NERELE conductors
REARRTSRES
Jiangst Sheen Colour Scence Technology Co, Ltd.  TEREMERKARAG(ISC])  The PRCThe PRCSno-foregn jont  Registered captal o RMB35,000,000 100% 100%  Printing of cigarette
("155C") (Note 1) (Mzk1) venture limited (2022: RMB60,389,000) fims
ity company SRR ARE35,000,0007 FERRIA
hE/ME/MIABERERAT (20024 : ARB60390007)
Yuzhou New Advantage Real state Development — RHFESEREREARAS  ThePRC/Te PRCAholy foregn-  Regsteed capita of US$30,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
Co, Lid. "NARED") (Note 1) (TNARED ) (k1) owned entty FHIHER30 0000005 hE%E
E/hE/NERERE
Hong Kong Sheen Taf vestment imited (HKSTL') ~ AIEREEARAZI(HKSTLY)  Hong KongHong Konglimited 25,000,000 odinaryshares 100% 100% - Investment holding
liiity company 25,000,000k SR HEAR
Bk Bk /RO
Sheen Tai (HK) New Energy Investment Limited JE5(BA)HEERERRAT  HongKongHong Konglimited 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
(*STNEIL(HK)") (TSTNEL (HK) ) liabity compeny 100k ERR e
Ek/Bh /RO
Century Leader Asia Lmited (' CLAL") sl Hong KongHong Konglimited 10,000 orcnary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
libilty company 100005 ERR and trading of semi
/8% BB conductors
RERRRTEEES
JEREREEER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21. RMIBATMNIKRE (&)

Principal country of operation/
Country of incorporation/Kind of

Name of company legal entity Particular of issued share capital Group's effective interest Principal activities
128ER%/HMAIES e
NRER RiEER BR{RAHE FEENERAR IEER
203 0
Bk Pl
Sheen China Group Holdngs Limited (‘SCGHL") ~ IEEEBARERAF[SCGHL)  Hong KongHong Konglimited 1 ordnary share 100% 100%  Inactive
liiity company 1RERR Bxh
&/ Bk /BRAT
Shenzhen Shuntai New Energy Scence Technology — AHIEZ TR RBRAA The PRC/The PRCAholly foreign- -~ Registered capital of US49,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and
Co, Lid. ("SINE")(Note 1) (TSZNE ) (k1) owned enty A R49,000 0007 trading
E/HE/NERELE RAFRNES
Yuzhou Shuntai New Energy Power Generation Co, M B8 REBERAA The PRC/The PRC/Limited liabiity ~ Registered capital of RMB39,000,000 100% 100%  Generation of
Lid, ("YINE') (Note 1) edd)tiRa) company AR AR39.000,0007 photovoltaic power
RE/HE/BRAT &S
Hong Kong Taiwo Holding Limited (“HKTHL) EAFARRERAF(HKHL)  HongKongHong Konglimited 100 ordinaryshares 100% 100%  Inactive
Tty company 100k 85 B3
&k /B%/BRAT
China City Cloud Network Sci. & Tech. Limted hEAMERENRERAA Hong KongHong Konglimited 100 ordinary shares 100% 60%  Investment holding
(*CCaNY) (ccen)) Tty company 100 &8 (Note 35(e) Note35(d) RERR
/58 /RO (zE3s(e)) (Hi&E35()
Yuzhou Shuntal Agricutural Technology Co,, Ltd. M EREERRBRAT The PRC/The PRCALimited fiabilty  Registered capital of RVB10,000,000 100% 100%  Agriculture technology
(“YNY") (Note 1) (Tan ) (1) ompany AEEARF100000007 RGN
#E/HE/BRAT
Shenzhen Qianhai Tazhiyun Network Sci. &Tech. Al 7 EEEREAERAA  The PRC/The PRCWhol foreign-  Registered capital of US§8,000,000 100% 60%  Investment holding
Limited (*SZQH") (Note 1) ([Sz0n ) (ztr) owned entty AR 000000ET (Note 35(e)) Note35(d)  RERR
hE/ME/ SRR (Wisste) (s
Yuzhou New Advantage New Energy Science BB RN R The PRC/The PRCALimited fiabilty  Registered capital of RVB12,800,000 100% 100%  Property related senices
Technolagy Co, Lt (Note 1) ERAR(ME) company SHRERARE12,8000007% GEGEE
#E/ 18/ BRAT
Note 1:  The English translation of the names is for reference only. The MIEE1 : EXAHEZLEEHRSE - ZFTEERD

official names of these entities are in Chinese. BHBBARBE -

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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21.

22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2023, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$211,315,000 (2022: HK$286,885,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

INVENTORIES

Packaging materials manufacturing and trading ~ E &8 EME

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

21. RHEBARWIRE (F)

2023F 128318 » AN&EE R BB RAF A
ARBETARBDABEZRTRESESRE
211,315,0005 7T (20224F : 286,885,000/ 7T ) ©
15 AR EE 5 i 5 SNEE 7838 <F Fp B B B B 15
RAEE - EERNESESRT -

22. #E

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THAT

Raw materials B 484 335
Work-in-process TR 10 278
Finished goods SURK 89 102
583 715
Property development MR
Completed properties held for sale HEEEMEERTE 4,109 4,392
4,692 5,107
JEREREEER A A

2023F F 2R

185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEeMBmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31B8IL5E
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZRWRERHMEWRIE
2023 2022
20234F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET &
Trade receivables (Note (a)) E A (Y sE)) 167,296 116,332
Allowance for doubtful debts (Note 6(b)) KRB S (M sE6(b)) (673) (1,233)
166,623 115,099
Deposits and other receivables e REAEWEIE
— third parties = 11,745 14,348
Prepayments SEINEN
— third parties —%=5 870 14,330
Due from a director and the ultimate controlling  FEUEE 28 f S 4242 Il 75 318
party (Note (b)) (Bf3E(D))
— Mr. Guo Yumin —BERSEE 973 238
Loan and interest receivables (Note (c)) FEUE KK F B (MIFEC) 64,746 39,467
244,957 183,482

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@  The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. The
credit terms generally range from 30 to 180 days from the invoice
date. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

23. BEZRWRERHMEWRRIE(E)
PIEE

R

(@ AEBEFFPHNESEIAEETARE - &
FER — RN ER A 30 2180H 2
B - BEFPHERAEEREE - NEEIRRFE
FYRAE B RERROBEIRIES - EFHEH
ERERETTE IR -

REBEZZAH  AEEE S BUGREENSE
BiB) 2 BRI DA

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT

Unbilled (Note (i)) EES G0 126,655 87,293
Less than 30 days DHR30H 22,235 7,440
31 - 90 days 31Z90H 17,717 19,731
91 - 180 days 91Z180H 6 11
Over 365 days 365H LA 10 624
166,623 115,099

Note:

(i) As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the amount represents
unbilled tariff adjustment receivables of solar power plants
registered in the List.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

Wi

0) 72022F %2023F 124318 * Z&#®
AR BARRESHENIERBEN
NGB RFAEBREEARER

R o

AEEE 5 REFIR R ERATERS

denominated in the following currencies: A :
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$°000 HK$'000
T Tisi
United States Dollars (“US$") E(EZ)) 38,012 24,719
RMB AR 128,611 90,380
166,623 115,099
JERZREBER D H

2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(b)  Details of amount due from a director and the ultimate controlling
party are as follows:

Mr. Guo Yumin FEREE

23. B 5 EUWEIRE R H i B E ()
GERC))

(b) EREERERLEFTHORBEFBOT

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year

Balance at
31 December
2022

Balance at
31 December
2023
120235 1202245
12A318H% 12A318#K
ek £33
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET

T T
REELH
HK$’'000
FHT

973 238 1,627

The amount due is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2023, no allowance is made for estimated

irrecoverable amount due from a director and the ultimate controlling

party (2022: Nil).
(0) (i) The loan and interest receivables with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$29,588,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$764,000) (2022:
HK$Nil (net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$Nil)) are
unsecured, carry interest at rates ranging from 3% to 6 % per
annum and repayable within one year.

(i) The loan and interest receivables with carrying amount of
approximately HK$35,158,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$9,799,000) (2022: HK$39,467,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$11,297,000)) related to a loan agreement entered into
by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on
12 June 2023 with Suining Chuyue Zhiye Company Limited
(MEEREEE AR 2AA]) (“Suining Chuyue”), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, and Mr. Sun Yong,
99% equity interest owner of Suining Chuyue. Pursuant to
the loan agreement, the Group agreed to provide to Suining
Chuyue a loan amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$43,848,000) (2022: RMB45,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$50,764,000)) for a term
of approximately nine months (2022: seven months), which
carries interest at 0.42% (2022: 0.58%) per month and is
secured by (1) 60% equity interest in Suining Chuyue which
is held by Mr. Sun Yong as the share charge in favour of the
subsidiary and (2) personal guarantee given by Mr. Sun Yong
in favour of the subsidiary.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

FZEFIAREER  RERARERER -

20235128318  MERERESERER
22 151 75 9 {511 AT UK [E] < B8 I R (2022
F )

48 BR T {5 #929,588,00058 7T (1% R BR
B #49764,0007487T) (20224 : THTT
(NMBRREBRESET)) MEKRER R
FEABEIER  BEFE3I%E6%:T S
RN —FREE -

@ 0

(i)  BE T E 435,158,000 (K% R BE
B 15 499,799,000 7 T ) (2022 & :
39,467,000 8 m( MK REBED
11,297,000 7T ) ) &) FE W B 3K % 7 B
BARAFH—EEE2ENRBARR
2023 F6 ANAEMEREEXLGR
ARI((HERE] —RERBERIH
EREFTRRREBEAE(HERE
HI99% RIEFTE &)L MER B ESR
W RBEERGZE  AEEREME
BRERMARY40,000,000T(HE
R #743,848,000/ L) (20224F : AR
& 45,000,000 7T (1 % 72 950,764,000
BIL))MER - AHBHNAMEA(2022
F: @A) HEFH0.42% (20224 :
0.58%)&TE  WAMABLEEFEHN
MERE0%RIE - (FRAUMBARA
Zm ARRMDEAE - RQ)ERB LN
B AR AZHANEAERERER
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTRACT ASSETS

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to tariff
adjustments for the electricity sold to the local state grid companies
in the PRC. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the Group’s respective operating power plants are registered
in the List pursuant to prevailing national government policies on
renewable energy for solar power plants.

As one of the operating power plants of the Group has been
registered in the List during the year, the respective amount of the
contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at
which it is registered in the List accordingly.

The Directors considered that the ECL for contract assets is
insignificant as at 31 December 2022, as the collection is well
supported by the government policies.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

24.

25.

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

BREE

BHEEIEYRARERTEL T EREH
RAHEENMPEREERRBAEN - BEAE
EEMEERTUHRBBUTRIT2EEAEE
BEUAIBERRREIIABER - GREE
HREAE ZEBSR

AR AEEREP —HEEXBUDTNFATIA
BE - AAMNEENHRSERENERE

BERREHNDORLSESHRUGIA -

BERA MN2022%F128318 ' AHEEDN
FEHEEEBRYTEX @ AAKRFERFRX
FEDTH o

UAAREEFEEHSEHT AEHE
HNEMEE

2023
20234

2022
20224
HK$'000
FAET

HK$°000
TERT

Unlisted equity securities (Note (a)) I EARAE 5 (i Fk(a)) = -
Wealth management product, at fair value BES @ BAAEECTED)
(Note (b)) - 5,681
Convertible loan (Note (c)) ATERER (M) 32,749 =
32,749 5,681
Analysed as: paxiiE
Non-current assets FEMBNEE 32,749 =
Current assets MEEE = 5,681
32,749 5,681
JEREREEER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the equity securities were
delisted from stock exchange and fully impaired.

The investment in wealth management product was issued by a major
bank in Mainland China, with no fixed maturity date. It was classified
as financial asset at FVTPL as its contractual cash flows are not solely
payment of principal and interest.

On 4 August 2023, SZNE, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a financing loan agreement with Shenzhen
Global Greenland New Material Co., Ltd. (RIITIIRERERHDFTH £ H
R 2 7]) (“Global Greenland”), an unlisted company established in the
PRC with limited liability. Pursuant to the agreement, SZNE agreed to
advance a loan (“convertible loan”) of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$55,265,000) to Global Greenland. The convertible
loan carries interest rate at 4.75% per annum with maturity in 48
months after the date of drawdown (the “Maturity Date"”).

The convertible loan entitles Global Greenland, the borrower, to
repay the principal amount at the Maturity Date with interest. The
convertible loan also entitles SZNE, the lender, at its option to convert
the principal amount by proportion to percentage of the principal
over the total amounts of paid-up share capital at the Maturity Date.
The loan was drawdown on 4 August 2023. The Group regularly
monitors the business and financial performance of Global Greenland
and expects to continue receiving interest from the convertible loan.
The convertible loan was classified as financial asset at FVTPL upon
the initial recognition.

The fair value of the convertible loan as at 31 December 2023
has been assessed with reference to a valuation carried out by an
independent professional valuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a loss from change in fair
value of the convertible loan of approximately HK$22,244,000 was
included in “other gains and losses, net”.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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25. UAREBESEAHESEFTAEYE
HENEMEE (B

i

(a)

(@)

REZE2021F12 A31 B IEFEE @ ZERAR
FERBER AR - WEREUR(E ©

i3

EMERKRERPRANEZRITET - ERH
FEHH - ERBRAUNAABEMAEAHE
PHAAEHEENERMEAE - REAESHR
ERETMEERARINAERFE -

R2023F8 A48 + ARRNHEEEZEWER
AISZNEE R T IRBRAR M FT M LA IR A B ([ 3R
BRégaw | o BRAR B M 2 IE LT AREM
RRNFIBEE R % © IRIEZ W% - SINE
MR BRAT D 4R £ A R #650,000,000 T (FHE A
#955,265,0007%8 70 ) W E ([ AT#EIRE K ]) -
AR E IR ENER B4 75%:T8 - AiREA
HAkEETAS(E A AR BA(TEIHEA ) »

ERARBRARE AR A BB RN E A
EEASSEERNL - IBREFITR TE
AASINEREF AR EIH B RIBAS SHEEH
EREEAD LI PIBSE RS - ZEK
ER2023F8 A4 R RE - AEETEHERR
BRERE BRI BRE - WIRHGE A
BEFRIFIS - TEBREFRSHERRD
BMRARAREBEFEEEEH AEHERN

AERERNAAEER2023F12A31 8K
SEB N BEGERMETZEET AT -

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE @ JEBERDN
ARBEZBEIB422,244,0008 TE T A
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2023, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$211,359,000 (2022:
HK$286,931,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

SHARE CAPITAL

26.

27.

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

RITRR SR

R2023F 128318 » AEE 2RI RIS HE#H
IARKESHE - £%8/4211,359,000/87T(2022
F : 286,931,000 7T )  #§ AR H i A INE
JAE ST B INE B IR IEH R AETE - SIE RITE
EEHE ©

IR

2023 2022
2023% 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
ROHE x| RingiE S8
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T8 THER Tk THT
Authorised: ETE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 FREE0.00258 LA
each Lk 8,000,000 20,000 8,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 FREE0.0025/8 TH)
each TiER
At 1 January and 31 December R1A1BRI12A318 2,434,136 6,085 2,434,136 6,085

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Total debt
comprises borrowings. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits and other reserves).

AEEEREAZ BNEEREREBERE
REREBBCABRERNFARAEBRR
Ol -

AEBEZERLVEEEASHE - AEEEE
BAGERE  IREBEKEALBELBREEN
BB EIEL AR - RERRFARELRERE -
AEEAREABINOERE - BITHRD - K
MEE « EEHMEYK  BRRANEBRLE
BENRDET -

AEBEREERBLRERER  ZLERIN
BEFEENCHABREAHE - EHERE
EREE - KHBREABEERNDAPAR
72 (BB ~ (REEN R E M) o

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

P AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

27.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group was in a net cash position as of 31 December 2022 and
2023 and hence no gearing ratio was presented.

The Group regards total equity other than non-controlling interests
as capital, for management purpose. The amount of capital as at
31 December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$718,576,000
(2022: HK$774,874,000), in which the Group considers as optimal
having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
projected investment opportunities.

The externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is in order
to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

27.

&N )

M20224 % 2023F12 318 - REBEREINF
Bamn - Rt U E2INEERBELE -

HEBEHOME @ ANEE SRR (R
HHRINRBER - A2023F12 8318 » EX
%6 49718,576,000/8 70(20224F : 774,874,000
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REWRSBRAEEEKTERBIESE -
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BTy LA - HED25%HBRMNBHRA
THAE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the

28. AAFUBRAKRKREEEE

(a) ADBHBARRE

Company
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T THT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHT B AR RIEE 21 449,650 449,650
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b e EoE 6,538 855
Due from a director EUEEHIE 849 -
Due from subsidiaries U B B A Bl FkIE 231,011 248,556
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS 12,328 36,688
Total current assets REEEMARE 250,726 286,099
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAb R FRIE 2,071 2,060
Due to subsidiaries FERIHT B A R FIE 30,239 35,199
Total current liabilities REEEALE 32,310 37,259
Net current assets REEERE 218,416 248,840
NET ASSETS FEE 668,066 698,490
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXRf#E
Share capital R A 27 6,085 6,085
Reserves & 28(b) 661,981 692,405
Equity R 668,066 698,490

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and is

signed on its behalf by:

Guo Yumin
BER

Xia Yu
5ig

RESEN2024F3 828 LA R T
AEIREREBZEHS

JERZEREBERAR
2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE B ERR M
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F 128318 IEFE
28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28. ARQBMBARRRKHEEE(E)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ERATEEES
Retained
Capital Share-based profits/
redemption Capital payments  (accumulated
Share premium reserve reserve reserve |osses)
HRHA
BB REER/
Rt EARERE ERifE Xl (BitER) &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEn TEr TEn TEr Thr
At 1 January 2022 R202F1518 601,585 5 81,955 13,866 8,236 705,695
Loss for the year EREE = = = = (13,290) (13,290)
At 31 December 2022 R2022F128318 601,585 5 81,955 13,866 (5,054) 692,405
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1A18 601,585 53 81,955 13,866 (5,054) 692,405
Loss for the year FNER - - - - (6,083) (6,083)
Dividend paid (Note 16) EARE (HiE16) (24,381) - - - - (24,381)
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12831H 577,244 53 81,955 13,866 (11,137) 661,981
29. RESERVES 29. f#fE
(a) Group (a) *%£HE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein AEBERESHERESHNREER N
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss H2EARERUARGEEGEHRE
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement 3 o

of changes in equity.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12A31HIEFE
29. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 29. fRE(E)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) REBNEENAR

(i) Share premium (i) RKRHOERE
The share premium represents the difference between BAD R EIE AR R I n E(E B %
the par value of the shares of the Company and TR BIRR 1 P YCER PTG 3008 2 )
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of B)ZEFE ©
the Company.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the BERSHERRNE - AAFIAK
funds in the share premium account of the Company MEEBEERFNESAIHIIKTAR
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company AR - ERPEEE S IRRE B
provided that immediately following the date on % RNRRVAREHEN —MREKB
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the T2 B HAFE (S OB o
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(i) Capital redemption reserve (i) EXEERE
Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of & 7N Ol (A R 2E A B R 8H 0 BB A {n
the nominal value of the issued capital of the Company BANBEETEAMERNRD -
upon the cancellation of the repurchased shares.

(iii) Capital reserve (iii) EXRRFE

The capital reserve mainly represents the contribution
from the ultimate controlling party and the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group on 21 June 2012.

BARREEZREEEESNTEER
FrUs B ft B8 A BIAR (0 < EE B A A
AIR2012%6 A21 B EAFBIER B
MEITRHD 2 BB ZERE -

JERZEREBERAR
2023F 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F12A318IEFE

29. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year/period losses) to the statutory reserve until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of each
relevant PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory
reserve must be made before distribution of dividends
to equity shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can
be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities,
to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered
capital of the subsidiary.

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in
Note 4(s) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 4(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2023

29. f#E(E)

(b) REEOEENRRZE)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EERE

REBERBTBIER - AEREAAT
B BB AR AR RENRE S
M E—EFE R E
BIMI0%BRELERE  BEE
ZERBEESAETENE QR
A MERES50%  BERDIRIZE
TREBRRABEELERHE &
TE RS TN ESERE AT E
REA - AR HIE A RIH REHE
BB MEEMER -

R B ER RSB

VAR 1 AR ETE RO X N R AR AR IR MY
AEAS) T AR S S B AR D RER
M MHEABERE T AEEER
MIARTTRE BB BN S bR 2B
BAREBE °

BE R 1B

bE S R B R R BN R R 15
BRAEENAEELZRE - %
BIR B AR A B 1 MR M 40 B 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

30. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised
by the Group:

Deferred tax liabilities

0. IEIERIIH

UTAAREERRZEEHARBEREE

EEHARE

Undistributed Fair value
Deferred tax arising profits of  adjustment of Right-of-use
from: subsidiaries assets assets Total
M A= BEENAR
BEHREEER ! R ELEF BERE EREEE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THERT THET FHE T
At 1 January 2022 7202241 A1
(restated) A(&E5) 7,299 173 1,264 8,736
Charge/(credit) to profitor  #I& 8, (3t A)
loss b= 995 (12) (42) 941
Disposal of subsidiaries HENTE QA
(Note 35(a)) (FF3E35(a)) - (92) - (92)
Exchange differences b Z5 = = (105) (105)
At 31 December 2022 20224124
(restated) 318 (&E5) 8,294 69 1,117 9,480
Credit to profit or loss ST ABE - (6) (47) (53)
Exchange differences PEH =58 = = (31) (31)
At 31 December 2023 2023%F12 A 31
H 8,294 63 1,039 9,396
JERZREBER D H

2023F F 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax arising from:

ERTRIRELS -

At 1 January 2022

H2022%1 818

Unrealised profit

Ao EE A
HK$'000
TAT

30. EFERE (M)
ELEBREEE

Provision for
trade and other
receivables
s  -EBFE
W RIE R Eo A
FEUFRIE
HK$'000
FHET

Lease
liabilities

MERE
HK$'000
TAT

At
HK$’'000
FH

(restated) (r&E5) 2 104 1,264 1,370
Credit/(charge) to profitor A /(1% H)

loss Ei=Eny - 20 (42) (22)
Exchange differences b =58 = 9) (105) (114)
At 31 December 2022 12022412 A31

(restated) H(&=51) 2 115 1,117 1,234
Charge to profit or loss B[ I=RiE (2) (113) (47) (162)
Exchange differences P ZER = (2) (31) (33)
At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31H = - 1,039 1,039

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset) for consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

THTIst4R & SRR KR Rk 2 BIE TR AR

(8 3H) DA

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Deferred tax assets FIEFRIBEE = 117
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIA A F (8.357) (8,363)
(8,357) (8,246)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

31.

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$31,613,000 (2022: HK$30,760,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$19,688,000 (2022: HK$20,632,000) that will expire on various
dates up to 2028 (2022: 2027). Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The deferred government grants represented the subsidies granted
by the PRC government to the Group in respect of acquisition of

certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

30.

31.

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

ELERE (])

RIEHR  AEBEBEARDAREBIED
31,613,000 75 (20224 : 30,760,000/ 7T ) 7]
FAREEER IR T o AR =T 2R 2 A
TR - WEBRREEHIEEE ° 5T AKRER
FRIEE1E R E18 4919,688,00078 7T ( 20224
20,632,00078 7T ) #55220284F (20224F : 20274F)
Z BIEYT (A B EAEI B o B 4th 56 18 E548 1] AR R AR
Fo

EEBRABRRTERTRBES THE
RS M2 A R A R B 4R T AN SR B RO fRY

2023 2022
20235 20224F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FAT
At 1 January ®1A1R 5,466 6,220
Credit to profit or loss for the year (Note 9) T AFE B (MFE9) (259) (273)
Exchange differences M W = FE (152) (481)
At 31 December ®12A31H 5,055 5,466
Analysed as: DT
Current liabilities mENAE 257 264
Non-current liabilities JEREEE 4,798 5,202
5,055 5,466
JEREREEER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32. BZRMNFEAREMENREA

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHT T

Trade payables Z ZENRIE 2,955 2,346
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIEREE A 9,599 11,412
12,554 13,758

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as

follows:

B RNFRNREAM RBERRENT

2023 2022

20234F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T

Due within 1 month or on demand 18 A R E|HA gk e sk 1,402 165
Due more than 6 months 61E A& EIHA 1,553 2,181
2,955 2,346

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

AEEE 5 RN ZREEAA NERFHE:

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T

us$ E 1,170 =
RMB AR 1,785 2,346
2,955 2,346

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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33. LEASE LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

33. HEAE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
BERENR BEEENRNEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
20236 20224 2023 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT TR THAT
Within one year —ER 1,395 1,846 615 1,002
More than one year, but not —ER FETHER
exceeding two years M 1,260 1,421 436 618
More than two years, but not more 4 IA_ HETRE
than five years R 3,650 3,738 1,499 1,455
More than five years BARE 15,502 17,211 10,327 11,172
21,807 24,216 12,877 14,247
Less: Future finance charges W RRBEER (8,930) (9,969) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligations ~ FAEAIEHZ(E 12,877 14,247 12,877 14,247
Less: Amount due for settlement  J : 1218 A R EIE
within 12 months (shown EfeE
under current liabilities) (RREAE
T#R) (615) (1,002)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 B4 EAfER
12 months x| 12,262 13,245
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HRREEE BN INEFEEEERENT
liabilities range from 2.55% to 11.18% (2022: from 2.55% to 2.55%%11.18% (20225 :2.55% £ 11.18%) °
11.18%).
JEREREEER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE B ERR M
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F 128318 IEFE
33. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 33. HESE(H)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities are AEEHESBNREEN T EBE :

denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
HK$ BT 206 804
RMB AR 12,671 13,443
12,877 14,247
34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 34. UROB/ERAIZM
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the then sole shareholder R B — R 20124F6 A 22 HiB B E
passed on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share BRAER BAAHBERIERRETSI(ER
option scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees RERTEI D) ERE R - BEBRAREKSE
with the opportunity to acquire equity interest in the Company. SRR AR A S ©
The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain BARERT S 5 ARSI MR E RENARAAE -
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to MASEES () £ RERRAEIINE
employees (full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to A RAREAR S B EBRIKT ©

promote the success of the business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary BIERER TRHEARMNRBERAR—RE
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares. AR - WARNhZEEHE -

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

The terms and conditions of the grants at the date of the
grants are as follows:

34.

BURAD R ER A S ()

B ZE2023F12A31BILFE

(@) IR BEATRBRE G R THT

W

Options granted to

RFUT AL HBRRE
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees
=P & A 38R s &S
29 January 2015 29 January 2016 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
2015%1A298 2016514298 2025514288
29 January 2015 29 January 2017 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201551 H29H 201741 H29H8 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2018 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 2018%1H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2019 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
2015514298 2019514298 2025514288
29 January 2015 29 January 2020 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201551 H29H 202051 H29H 202551 H28H

2,100,000 12,500,000 14,600,000

IERZEREEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRHE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31B8IL5E
34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. URMAERENZMNE)
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) FERRFERIERE FMINEFHITEGLT ¢

options are as follows:

Share options granted on 29
January 2015
R20155F1H29 8 #F HER#E

Weighted

average No. of
exercise price options
InEEF T EE BREHE
HK$ ‘000

BT TR

Outstanding at 1 January 2023 and 72023418 1H K%2023%F 12

31 December 2023 A31H KT HK$0.8250 49,550
Exercisable at 31 December 2023 2023512 A31BAI17{E HK$0.8250 49,550
Outstanding at 1 January 2022 and 7202251 A1H %2022 12

31 December 2022 A31H AT HK$0.8250 49,550
Exercisable at 31 December 2022 1202212 A31 B AJ{T{E HK$0.8250 49,550
The share options granted on 29 January 2015 outstanding at 201541 A29 B #2023 12 A31H &
31 December 2023 had an exercise price of HK$0.8250 (2022: AT B AR M B 1T £ /8 /80.825078 7T (2022
HK$0.8250) and a weighted average remaining contractual F:0.8250%8 L) - R T INETFII AR A
life of 1.08 years (2022: 2.08 years). 1.08% (20224 : 2.08%F) °
The numbers of options and weighted average exercise price REAR SN B RNt I EE TR RO R4 B
were presented as after the effect of the share subdivision 20159 A24BRAEMIE « IREBRANFIE #
with effect from 24 September 2015 on the basis of each TRRETRODIFARIBRIFERD 2 EEZ
issued or unissued share of the Company was subdivided into B e

4 subdivided shares.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. KEBRERERMT
CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year (a) EZ2022F12A31HILLEEHE
ended 31 December 2022 ME AR
On 17 May 2022, the Group entered into a share purchase R2022F58178 » NEBE S ER
agreement to dispose of the entire issued share capital % 0 MBI % =75 & Treasure Cloud
of Treasure Cloud Limited (“Treasure Cloud”) and 100% Limited ([ Treasure Cloud])By2ZE 31T
equity interests in Falcon Wisdom Limited, Sheyang Tengyun B IA Kz Treasure Cloud # 8 M5 A R
Information Technology Co., Ltd., Xuyi Guangcai Information Aal > FIEEEEEREERAR - B
Technology Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Qianhai Tengzhiyun R ENE BRI AR AR RIS 2
Network Sci. & Tech. Limited owned by Treasure Cloud at EREBEERAF100%#E - BER
a cash consideration of HK$21,380,000 to an independent 821,380,000 7T - ZEEFEHER
third party. The disposal was completed on 10 June 2022. 2022F6 H10H 58X © Treasure Cloud &
Treasure Cloud and its subsidiaries were inactive during the H A m R B TR RS -
period.

JEREREEER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. KEBRERERMT(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year (a) BZE2022F12A31HILEEHE
ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) M A al (48)
Net assets of Treasure Cloud and its subsidiaries at the date A H & B HiTreasure Cloud X E W B R 7]
of disposal were as follows: HEEFELT -
HK$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KRR 70
Intangible assets | AE 501
Other non-financial assets HibEemEE 140
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEMGRIE I H Ab FE MR IR 23,971
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS R 782
Other payables HAb e FRIE (110)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBRE (92)
Net assets disposed of i B & EFE 25,262
Release of exchange reserve e DRGE 5 e 471
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 10) i E BT A RSB (MdEE10) (4,353)
Total consideration BRE 21,380
Consideration satisfied by: ARAA R ZARAE -
Cash Re 21,380
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMIRESRAFRE
Cash consideration received BREERE 21,380
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of b ERekEE£SEEE (782)
20,598

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January Cash
2023 flows
R20235

Lease liabilities (Note 33) HEAR(33)

HK$'000

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

35. MERERBRMEE(E)
(b) BMEEBFRELNEEHE

TRAMAEEREZBAELNBER
B BEASNFRSED  REIY
FEANAERASEFARESRERT
REREBEDBRIRFESRK DA
RBELHAELNRSRNAE -

At

Exchange 31 December
differences 2023
R2023F
12A31H
HK$'000
TR

%9
HK$000
TR

EXER
HK$'000
TR

1A18

TR

14,247 (993) (377) 12,877

At January
2022
R02E1A1A
HK$'000

el
BTL

Lease liabilities (Note 33) HEARNER) 15,247

Cash Exchange At 31 December
flows Additions differences 2022
RehE HE EXZE  H0RE1A31R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A Thn AL AT

(1,017) 1,187 (1,170 14247

JERZEREBERAR
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R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. MAHRERERMET(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HERSRHAZE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash FAGEHERERTHHEERENTE
flows for leases comprise the following: #
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Within operating cash flows EREREREFR 2,443 2,273
Within financing cash flows ERERESRER 993 1,017
3,436 3,290
These amounts relate to the following: ZERHEATIHERR :

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$000 HK$'000
TR THT

Lease rental paid 2fHEE 3,436 3,290

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRKRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. KEBRERERMT(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(d) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without (d) HER—BNAZESENKELQ
loss of control AR
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group HZE2022F12831HLEFE  AEEE
disposed of 40% interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary at BEHEN—HEZ2EMNBAFMNA0%HE
nil consideration. The effect of the disposal on the equity oo HEHARR A SRR B ERE
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company is as BEVRZZIAT
follows:
HK$'000
FrET
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests disposed H &SR s R BRE(E 260
Consideration received from non-controlling interests FRIEE R BRI (B =
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity ERN R 260
(e) Acquisition of non-controlling interest of a (e) WEE—REMEBAKIIEERER
subsidiary
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group HZE2023F12A31HIEFE - AEE
acquired 40% shareholdings of Sheen Tai Cloud Network A0ETT(FHER310E L) RERIEREZH
Limited (“STCNL") from non-controlling interests of STCNL #BAEMR A ([STCNL) FEfz i i o U BB H
at a consideration of US$40 (equivalent to HK$310). STCNL 40% A% FE o STCNL % /1 Bl 35 T E 48 48 &)
and China City Cloud Network Sci. & Tech. Limited and BARATRRIINANER 2 EREERERE
Shenzhen Qianhai Taizhiyun Network Sci. & Tech. Limited, R R (STCNLE B AR BB AR
subsidiaries of STCNL, became wholly-owned subsidiaries NAINEZEMB AR  ZWEEEEH K
of the Company since then. The effect of the acquisition on NEEE ABGERNZENT
the equity attributable to the owners of the Company is as
follows:
HK$'000
FHETT
Share of net liabilities in the subsidiaries acquired FE(ERRUEEMT B A TN B EFEE (275)
Share of exchange reserve FEAGTE A (4)
Consideration RE -
Loss on acquisition recognised directly in equity BENEmPRERNUEERE (279)
JEREREEER A A
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ma

P AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

35.

36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(f) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
acquired right-of-use assets of HK$1,187,000 which was
financed by lease liabilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As
at 31 December 2023, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed in Note 19.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these offices are approximately HK$99,000 (2022:
HK$102,000).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

35.

36.

37.

FERERERMEE(E)

(f) EEHFRREXRH

HE2022F128318IEFE
B A E 1,187,000/ 7T
HEaERE -

P REER
' %KAM

HREE

2023512 A31H » A& B I E(T A E R A
BE(20224F : &) o

KERERH
REBER/FEBAA

AEBFERIT IR AERHEE - 12023512
H318 - EHHESHEAS B 19 R ENEH
HEHHERESESHEMU -

M2023F12A31H @ ZEHLAEHEHRE
B EAIE4999,000/8 7T (20224 : 102,000/
JC) °



37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to buildings owned by the Group with lease
terms of 1 year (2022: 1 year). The lessee does not have an option
to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss:

Lease income on operating leases

REEENRES KA

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

KEHEZH(E)

AEBEAHEA

AEB A ETHEE 2 CERENHSA1F
(20224 : 14F) - &AM AEEEHHEREE
LEE

TREFIEBSEPHRENEHE

2023 2022
20234

20224
HK$'000
FHBT

HK$°000
TR

190 71

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, transactions with
the following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Mr. Guo Yumin
IERSLE

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note)
wNmEFHERZEER AT (M)

Cheng Jun Group Limited
HEEEAR AR

Union Winful Limited
BEKEHRA

Sheen Dragon Properties Limited

ImBEEXARAF

Hong Kong Rising Star Group Holdings Limited
BEAEREEZERERA

Hong Kong Sheen Dragon Investment Company Limited

BERmMEREERDR]

Xuzhou Lvzhou Property Management Co., Ltd (Note)
BMEMNEBTEBR AT (M)

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official
names of these entities are in Chinese.

EXBABLEXRS

REE2022F K%2023F12 A31B EFER -
HRYEFETHR ZHEEESR RS

Director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company

RABEE RREEHTT

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HmEEREEHER

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HEEREEHEE

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HIBEREEHER

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBEREEHER

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HmEEREEHER

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBEREEHEE

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBEREEHER

BRE - XA REFLREHRSE
BRARR SR -

ZEEBNEA

JERZEREBERAR
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R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 15 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 14(b), is as follows:

38. EXBHAIXRS (&)

(a) FEEEABHM
REEFEEEABFHM(BENHFE5
T #2822~ F 3 55 TR O BT 55 14() PR BR
XA T T i B ME 8 #9538 ) #5140
T

2023 2022

20235 20224F

HK$000 HK$'000

THET FBT

Short-term employee benefits %2 HifE B2 A 4,462 3,943
Post-employment benefits BERL 1 2 A 118 166
4,580 4,109

Total remuneration is disclosed in “staff costs” in Note 14.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023
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38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed in
Note 38(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Development Co., BMImRE R ER R

e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

38. EXBHAIXRS (&)

(b) HitbEBEL RS

B4R A B SRR 5E38@) T Bk &
B R SN - AREBENFREE S
FIMATRS ¢

2023
20235

L EV
Repayment received

to related from related

Rental expenses parties parties
1 B R 7 W ER

Hemx EBH A BN BR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T TR AT

Ltd. BRAR 328 (328) 328
Cheng Jun Group Limited EEZT%%EI%_KE“_ = (15) 15
Union Winful Limited #é\.ﬂﬂaﬁﬂﬁ - (51) 51
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited REEXERA 100 (121) 121
Hong Kong Rising Star Group Holdings Limited ?/%EE}I_YE Bz Hxﬁﬁﬂ

UNG]| - (11) 1
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon Investment Company &8kl EAR AR

Limited - (4) 4

Mr. Guo Yumin BEREE 922 (1,705) 970
1,350 (2,235) 1,500
JEREREEER A A
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eI RME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12A31BIEFE

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (Continued)

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Development Co.,

FMREEHERER

38. EXBHAIXRS (&)

(b) HtbEEBLXS (&)

Rental expenses

HeHE
HK$'000
570

2022
20225

Repayment
to related
parties

BlELyip=A
HK$'000

Repayment
received

from related
parties

%@ Ry
HK$'000

AT

Ltd. NG| 397 (397) 397
Cheng Jun Group Limited HEEEERAF = (11) M
Union Winful Limited fEXKEERAE = (10) 10
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited WEBEERAT 100 (185) 185
Hong Kong Rising Star Group Holdings Limited &8 £ R EEIERAER

| = ®) 8
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon Investment Company &/l R & AR A Al

Limited = @) 2

Xuzhou Lvzhou Property Management Co., Ltd.  #@JN&M ML E B AR
NG| = (140) =
Mr. Guo Yumin PEREE 600 (849) 1,038
1,097 (1,602) 1,651

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31ALFE
38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EXEHAIRS ()
(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related party (c) EEERESS WV4ERR
At 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Group had the 20226 22023512 A318 » AEE
following balances with related party: B DA B RS 77 B RRER -

2023 2022
20234 20224

HK$"000 HK$'000
TR THET

Due from director and ultimate controlling Y E &5 [ R 4247 4|

party T 5RIE
— Mr Guo Yumin -BERESE (i) 973 238
(i) The amount due from a director is interest-free and expected (i) FREEFZEBRS - BEHBER—F
to be recovered within one year. ALk E e

JERZEREBERAR
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R HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39.

On 21 March 2024, the Group entered into an agreement with
Suining Chuyue to extend the due date of a loan of RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$43,848,000) originally due on 20
March 2024. The loan is now repayable on 30 November 2024,
bears interest at 1% per month and additionally secured by 70
carpark spaces located in PRC owned by Mr. Sun Yong.

40. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2023

BEPREE

R2024F3 8218 ' AEEHEEEEET L
i o B E K AR 40,000,000 7T (HHE R4
43,848,000/ 70 ) 2 EIHA A (R 742024F 3 5 20
HEIER)ERR - ZERGRAN2024F 11 A30H
B8 @ AR E1%:TE - WHEBLEHES
Z 70BN HA R B K (F BB AL EREIMER o

REM B R
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RETIEE o



Summary Financial Information
M ERBE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and X ABAREMBFEEANEEC TIBEEAREE
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years: REBEZHE :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ELLEE

2023 2022 PIA 2020 2019

20235 20226 20214 2020 20196
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT THT TET TR

RESULTS E4
Revenue WA
Continuing operations FEICEER 423,708 315,701 66,113 79,525 75,259
Discontinued operations RES I =T = - - 270,105 300,949
423,708 315,701 66,113 349,630 376,208
(Loss)/profit before tax BAl(&8),/ & (9,340) 12,089 (6,129) 14,226 (36,904)
Income tax expense FEHE (4,059) (4,785) (775) (4,439) (1,815)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing SECUERER
operations (E518) /& (13,399) 7,304 (6,904) 9,787 (38,719)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued B4R HE& 2754
operations WAl (E18) = = = 6,755 (9.154)
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(EE),/ & (13.399) 7,304 (6,904) 16,542 (47,873)
Attributable to: AT AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company RRARERSRE (13,389) 7,313 (6,794) 15,053 (47,873)
Non-controlling interests FiEiER (10) 9 (110) 1,489 -
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BE),/BF (13,399) 7,304 (6,904) 16,542 (47,873)
JEREREEER A A
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As at 31 December
W12A31H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023F 20225 20216 20205 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT TAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR

Non-current assets FRBEE 282,633 303,017 341,788 343,688 512,355
Current assets MEEE 487,060 525,235 540,055 529,326 471,286
Current liabilities MEBEE (25,700) (26,835) (28,518) (32,721) (190,059)
Non-current liabilities A E (25,417) (26,810) (27,996) (27,451) (27,931)
Net assets FEE 718,576 774,607 825,329 812,842 765,651

Attributable to: AN ALFEL -

Equity shareholders of the Company RRARERSRE 718,576 774,874 825,329 812,842 765,651

Non-controlling interests JEERER = (267) = = -
Total equity EREE 718,576 774,607 825,329 812,842 765,651

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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